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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Pursuant to paragraph 15.15 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, the members of Audit 
Committee of Pensonic Holdings Berhad are pleased to present the Audit Committee Report (“the Report”) for the 
financial year ended 31 May 2014.

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in discharging its statutory duties and 
responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices and to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s 
internal control measures.

The members of the Audit Committee and their respective designations who have served during the financial year ended 
31 May 2014 are as follows:

Member Designation

Loh Eng Wee Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai
(Resigned on 25 July 2014)

Member (Independent Non-Executive Director and 
re-designated as Executive Director on 28 April 2014)

Khairilanuar Bin Tun Abdul Rahman Member (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Lela Pahlawan Dato’ Wira Ku Nahar Bin Ku Ibrahim Member (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Tahir Jalaluddin Bin Hussain Member (Independent Non-Executive Director)

TERMS OF REFERENCE

•	 Membership

The Company must appoint an Audit Committee from amongst its Board of Directors which fulfils the following 
requirements:

a) the Committee must be composed of no fewer than 3 members;

b) all members of the Audit Committee must be non-executive directors, with a majority of them being independent 
directors; and

c) at least one member of the Committee:
i. must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or

ii. if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least 3 years’ working experience 
and: (aa) he must have passed the examinations specified in Part 1 of the 1st schedule of the Accountants Act 
1967; or (bb) he must be a member of one of the associations specified in Part II of the 1st Schedule of the 
Accountants Act 1967. 

iii. fulfils such other requirements as prescribed or approved by the Bursa Securities. 

d) The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a Chairman from among themselves who shall be an independent 
director. 

e) No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.

f) In the event of any vacancy in the Committee resulting in the non-compliance of the Listing Requirements of the 
Exchange pertaining to composition of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors shall within three months of that 
event fill the vacancy.

g) The terms of office and performance of the Committee and each of its members must be reviewed by the Board of 
Directors at least once every 3 years to determine whether the Committee and its members have carried out their 
duties in accordance with their terms of reference. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONT’D)

•	 Meetings and Procedures

The Audit Committee shall meet at least 4 times in a year, and at such additional meetings as the Chairman shall decide in 
order to fulfil its duties. The external auditors may request for a meeting if they consider this necessary.

The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Audit Committee and shall be responsible for the coordination of 
administrative details including sending out notice of meetings, preparing and keeping minutes of meetings. The minutes 
of the Audit Committee’s meetings are to be extended to the Board of Directors.

The Head of Finance, the representatives of internal auditors and external shall normally attend the Audit Committee 
meetings. Other directors and employees may attend any particular Audit Committee meeting only at the invitation of 
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditors without the presence of any executive 
directors and employees of the Company, whenever deemed necessary.

During the financial year ended 31 May 2014, the Audit Committee held a total of four (4) meetings, the details of 
attendance of which are as follows:

Member No. of meetings attended

Loh Eng Wee 4 of 4
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai 
(Resigned on 25 July 2014)

4 of 4

Khairilanuar Bin Tun Abdul Rahman 4 of 4
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Lela Pahlawan Dato’ Wira Ku Nahar Bin Ku Ibrahim 3 of 4
Tahir Jalaluddin Bin Hussain 4 of 4

•	 Quorum

The quorum for an Audit Committee meeting shall consist of two (2) members and the majority of members present must 
be independent directors.

•	 Authority of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is empowered by the Board of Directors with the following authority:
-	 Have the authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference.
-	 Have the resources which are required to perform its duties.
-	 Have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Group.
-	 Have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal audit function or 

activity.
-	 Be able to obtain independent professional or other advice.
-	 Be able to convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors or both, excluding the attendance of the 

other directors and employees of the Company, whenever deemed necessary.
-	 Review any significant transactions which falls under any one of the percentage ratios indicated in Paragraph 10.02 (g) 

of the MMLR with threshold of 5% or more and which are not within the normal course of business and not with any 
related party that may arise within the Company or Group.

•	 Functions of the Audit Committee

-	 The Audit Committee shall, amongst others, discharge the following functions:

To review the following and report the same to the Board of Directors:
i.	 with the external auditor, the audit plan and to ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;
ii.	 with the external auditor, his evaluation of the system of internal controls;
iii.	 with the external auditor, his audit report, his management letter and the management’s response;
iv.	 the assistance given by the Company’s employees to the external auditor;
v.	 the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit functions and that it has the 

necessary authority to carry out its work;
vi.	 the internal audit programme, processes, the results of the internal audit programme, processes or investigations 

undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function;
vii.	 to review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of members of the internal audit function;
viii.	 to approve any appointment or termination of senior staff members of the internal audit function;
ix.	 to inform itself of any resignation of internal audit staff members and provide the resigning staff member and 

opportunity to submit his reasons for resigning;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONT’D)

•	 Functions of the Audit Committee (cont’d)

x.	 the quarterly results and year end financial statements, prior to the approval by the Board of Directors, focusing 
particularly on:
a)	 changes in or implementation of major accounting policy changes;
b)	 significant and unusual events;
c)	 significant adjustments arising from the audit;
d)	 the going concern assumption; and
e)	 compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements

xi.	 any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Company or group including 
any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions on management integrity;

xii.	 any letter of resignation from the external auditors; and
xiii.	 whether there is reason (supported by grounds) to believe that the external auditor is not suitable for reappointment.

-	 To recommend the nomination of a person or persons as external auditors.
-	 To promptly report such matter to the Exchange if the Committee is of the view that the matter reported by it to 

the Board of Directors has not been satisfactorily resolved resulting in a breach of the Listing Requirements.
-	 To carry out any other functions as may be agreed by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

•	 SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

During the financial year ended 31 May 2014, the Audit Committee discharged its duties and responsibilities in accordance 
with its Terms of Reference and the activities undertaken by the Audit Committee were as follows:

-	 Reviewed the Internal Audit Plan.
-	 Review and discuss the internal audit reports issued by the internal auditors for audit assignments carried out during 

the year including the follow-up reviews of previous audits undertaken and the status of actions taken by management 
to resolve and rectify major issues raised by the auditors.

-	 Review the unaudited quarterly financial statements and announcements of the Group and made recommendations 
to the Board of Directors for approval prior to the release of the results to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

-	 Review the annual audited financial statements of the Company and the Group and made relevant recommendations 
to the Board of Directors for approval.

-	 Review and discuss the memorandum of matters and issues with external auditors and management’s response to 
all pertinent issues and findings raised and noted by the external auditors during their audit of the financial statements 
together with recommendations in respect of their findings.

-	 Brief the Board of Directors on any major issues discussed at the Audit Committee meeting for further deliberation or 
decision as the case may be.

-	 Review the Group’s key operational and business risks area and the policies in place to address and minimize such risks.
-	 Review the procedures for identification of related party transactions of the Group.
-	 Review and discuss the Audit Committee Report and Statement on Internal Control for inclusion in the Group’s Annual 

Report. 

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that it has discharged its duties in accordance with the Terms of Reference as 
established above during the financial year.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company has appointed Messrs UHY, an independent professional accounting firm, to provide outsourced internal 
audit function for the Group in order to assist the Audit Committee in discharging its duties and responsibilities. The main 
role of the internal audit is to review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control and this is performed with 
impartially, proficiency and due professional care.

The internal audit activities have been carried out in accordance with the internal audit plan which has been approved by 
the Audit Committee. The internal audit function reports directly to the Audit Committee and provides the Committee with 
independent and objective assurance on the adequacy and integrity of its system of internal controls.

The internal audit adopts a risk based auditing approach by focusing on identifying high risk areas and to recommend 
corrective measurements for compliance with control policies and procedures, identifying business risk which have not 
been appropriately addressed and evaluating the adequacy and integrity of control.

The fee paid to an independent professional accountancy amounted to RM9,361 (2013: RM9,307).

This Report is issued in accordance with a resolution of Directors and Audit Committee dated 26 Septenber 2014.
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The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012 (“MCCG 2012”) requires public listed companies to maintain a sound 
system of risk management and internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investments and company’s assets. Under 
the provisions of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market Listing Requirements (“Main Listing Requirements”), 
under paragraph 15.26(b), Directors of public listed companies are required to produce a statement on the state of the 
company’s internal control in their Annual Report.

The Board of Directors (“Board”) continues with its commitment to maintain sound systems of risk management and 
internal control throughout Pensonic Holdings Berhad and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and in compliance with the Main 
Listing Requirements and the Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control (Guidelines for Directors of Listed 
Issuers) (“Internal Control Guidelines”). The Board is pleased to provide the following statement which outlines the nature 
and scope of risk management and internal control of the Group during the financial year in review.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

The Board acknowledges the importance of risk management and internal control being embedded into the culture, 
processes and structures of the Group. The systems of internal control cover risk management and financial, organizational, 
operational, project and compliance controls. The Board affirms its overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of internal 
control and for reviewing the effectiveness and efficiency of those systems to ensure its viability and robustness. It should 
be noted, however, that such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, risks of failure to achieve corporate 
objectives. Inherently, it can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating, monitoring and managing operational issues faced, or 
potentially exposed to, by the Group in pursuing its corporate objectives. The adequacy and effectiveness of this process 
is reviewed by the Executive Committee (“EXCO”) comprising of Executive Directors of the Company.

CONTROL STRUCTURE AND ENVIRONMENT

In furtherance to the Board’s commitment to maintain sound systems of risk management and internal control, the 
Board continues to implement and maintain a structure and environment for the proper conduct of the Group’s business 
operations as follows:

•	 The Board meets quarterly and has set a schedule of matters which is required to be brought to its attention for 
discussion, thus ensuring that it maintains supervision over appropriate controls. In addition, subsequent to the 
current financial year end, the Executive Directors are kept updated on the Group’s activities and its operations on a 
monthly basis through EXCO meeting held; 

•	 An organization structure with well-defined scopes of responsibility, clear lines of accountability, and appropriate 
levels of delegated authority; 

•	 A process of hierarchical reporting which provides for a documented and auditable trail of accountability; 

•	 A set of documented internal policies and procedures for operational and human resource management, which is 
subject to review and improvement.

•	 Relevant information provided to management, covering financial and operational performance and key business 
indicators, for effective monitoring and decision making; 

•	 Visits to operating units by members of the Board and senior management. 

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL 
CONTROL
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL 
CONTROL (CONT’D)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Executive Directors monitors the operations and deal with risk events to safeguard the Group’s business interest 
from risk events that may impede the achievement of business strategy, enable value creation and growth through 
identification of opportunities and provide assurance to the Groups’ various stakeholders.

Management is accountable to the Board for the implementation of the processes in identifying, evaluating, and monitoring 
of risks and internal control. 

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Board acknowledges the importance of the internal audit function and has engaged the services of an independent 
professional consulting firm, Messrs. UHY to provide much of the assurance it requires regarding the effectiveness as 
well as the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s systems of internal control.

The internal audit adopts a risk-based approach in developing its audit plan which addresses the core auditable areas of 
the Group based on their risk profile. Scheduled internal audits are carried out by the internal auditors based on the audit 
plan presented to and approved by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has full and direct access to the internal auditors and the Audit Committee receives reports on all 
internal audits performed. The Internal Auditors continue to independently and objectively monitor compliance with regard to 
policies and procedures, and the effectiveness of the internal controls systems. Significant findings and recommendations 
for improvement are highlighted to Management and the Audit Committee, with periodic follow-up of the implementation 
of action plans. The Management is responsible for ensuring that corrective actions were implemented accordingly.

Based on the internal auditors’ reports for the financial year ended 31 May 2014, a number of internal control weaknesses 
were identified during the financial year, all of which have been, or are being, addressed. None of the weaknesses have 
resulted in any material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Group’s annual report.

The Board has also received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer that 
the risk management and internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries are operating adequately and 
effectively, in all material aspects based on the risk management and internal control system adopted.

The Board continues to review and implement measures to strengthen the internal control environment of the Group. The 
Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control system in place during the year and up to the date of 
approval of this statement is sound and adequate to safeguard shareholders’ investment, the interest of customers and 
other stakeholders. 

The Statement on Risk Management and internal Control does not cover the associates, Pensonic (B) Sdn Bhd and 
Microtag System Sdn Bhd in which the Company has no major board representation. 

This statement is issued in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 26 September 2014
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The directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial year in accordance with applicable approved accounting 
standards such that financial statements should give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and 
of the results and cash flows of the Group and the Company for the financial year then ended in accordance with the Companies 
Act, 1965 and the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

The Directors also have the responsibility to take such steps as are reasonably open to them of safeguard the assets of the Group 
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

In preparing the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2014, the Directors are satisfied that the Company and 
Group had maintained adequate and proper accounting records and sufficient internal control to enable the Company to disclose, 
with reasonable accuracy and without any material misstatement, the financial position as at 31 May 2014, and the profit and loss 
for the financial year ended 31 May 2014 of the Company and the Group. The Directors have :

-	 Adopted the appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

-	 Made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

-	 Ensured applicable approved accounting standards have been followed, and any material departures have been disclosed and 
explained in the financial statements; 

-	 Ensured the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; and 

-	 Provided the auditors with every opportunity to take all steps, undertake all inspections and seek all explanations they  
considered appropriate to enable them to give their audit report on the financial statements. 

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES ON  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Corporate Social Responsibility is an integral part of any organization’s way of succeeding in business and contributing to the 
welfare of employees in particular and society at large and also to all communities in the environment it operates. This approach 
to business - balancing economic, social and environmental interests is commonly referred to as Corporate Responsibility or 
Sustainability. In this context, the Board of Directors of Pensonic Holdings Berhad regards the need for Corporate Responsibility (CR) 
as an integral part of a business’s operations and practices. 

CR initiatives undertaken by the Group are summarized below: 

Environment 

The Group acknowledges responsibility for care of the environment. The Group considers safety and environmental factors in all 
operating decisions and explores feasible opportunities to minimize any adverse impact from manufacturing operations, waste 
disposal to product design and packaging. 

Manufacturing Operation 

At Pensonic, sustainable production and operations mean taking measures to supply and manufacture products in an economically, 
environmentally and socially sustainable way. It is Pensonic’s interest that it takes the necessary measures today to operate 
responsibly and, safeguard the environment in order to protect its current and future investments. 

The notion of sustainable development extends beyond factories to include the entire product lifecycle. Creating shared value 
is Pensonic’s concept of corporate responsibility, which means that as employees create value for the company, they must also 
benefit the community. It is a business strategy that brings value to society by examining multiple points where Pensonic touches 
society and make long term investments that benefit its stakeholders. 

Products 

Pensonic’s fan is awarded 5-star rating by Energy Commission (EC) for its efficiency in energy consumption. 

In line with the government’s policy banning the use of incandescent light in phases starting on 2011, Pensonic’s sale range for 
lighting is the energy-saving Compact Florescent Light (CFL). 

Pensonic launched its caring of the environment Eco range product in 2010, the Eco Thermopot which is eco-friendly and energy- 
saving with stylish design. 

Pensonic’s launched its new product LED range product in 2012, the Carinae LEDs solar cube its efficiency retro inspired Solar Cube is 
powered by solar energy. 

Pensonic’s launched new product Blender is call PapaBlend for Healthy Lifestyle it comes to the best in nutritious beveragres. 

Community 

During the year, the Group contributed to the communities through donation and sponsorship to various organizations and 
charities, including the followings: 

1. 	 PersatuanMeninggikanAkhlakChe Lu Khor
2. 	 CheKiaKhor Moral Uplifting Society, KL 
3. 	 CheHoonKhor Moral Uplifting Society Foundation 
4. 	 Ji Her Charity & Moral Uplifting Society 5. CheHuanKhor Moral Uplifting Society 
5. 	 CheZhongKhor Moral Uplifting Society, Betong
6. 	 Che Wei Khor Charity & Moral Uplifting 
7. 	 PertubuhanAmal&PendidikanAkhlakJi Le Shan She Lundu
8. 	 YayasanDialisisPertubuhanPendidikanAkhlak, Taiping 
9.	  TWH Building Community 
10. 	SMJK Jit Sin (OrkestraCina) 
11. 	SMJK Jit Sin (Pancaragam) 
12. 	Federation Oil Factory - School Building Fund Donation 
13. Penang International Ballroom Dancing Championship 
14. 	PertubuhanAmal&PendidikanAkhlakJi Her Kota Kinabalu

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
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Community (Cont’d)

15. Chung Hua Private Secoundry School Building Fund 
16. Moral Uplifting Society Jakarta Indonesia 
17. PersatuanPendidikanAkhlakChe Yang Khor
18. PertubuhanTekChiaoTzeCh’ihKo Bukit Mertajam

In addition to the above, the Group contributed to the communities for social events, including the followings: 

1. 	 Penang Chinese Town Hall 
2. 	 The Federated Teochew Associations of Malaya 
3. 	 KwongWahYitPoh Press Bhd
4. 	 Church Of The Holy Name Of Jesus 
5. 	 Teochew Merchants Association Penang 
6. 	 PersatuanPenganut Hock Teik Cheng Sin, Bandar Baru
7. 	 TekChiaoTzeCh’ihKo
8. 	 PusatBudidayaCemerlang
9.	 Tan Si Chong Ghee Seah
10.	Chung Ling High School anniversary 
11.	Penang Xiamen Frienship Association 

Workplace 

The Group believes that employee’s involvement is vital to the success of the Group. The Group strives to motivate and retain the 
best employees by providing continuous training by sending them to attend relevant courses to upgrade their knowledge and skills 
within their job scope. 

The Group also organizes annual get-together for its employees where they will get to know each other better outside the 
workplace which can greatly enhance their workplace relationship. 

As an employer, the Group recognizes and accepts its responsibilities for providing and maintaining a safe and healthy workplace 
for all its employees, contractors and visitors. Information on safety issues are communicated through various Health & Safety 
Committees, Safety Representatives, Notice Boards and regular management briefings. 

Ethical Policy 

In addition, the Board of Directors of the Company had adopted the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the Conflict of 
Interests Policy for Board members. The Code is intended to focus the Board and each director on the duties and responsibilities of 
directors, provide guidance to directors to help them recognize and deal with ethical issues, provide mechanism to report unethical 
conduct, and help foster a culture of honesty and accountability. Each director must comply with the letter and spirit of this Code. 
No code or policy can anticipate every situation that may arise. Accordingly, this Code is intended to serve as a source of guiding 
principles for directors. Directors are encouraged to bring up questions about particular circumstances that may implicate one or 
more of the provisions of this Code to the attention of the Chairman of the Nomination Committee, who may consult with inside 
or outside legal counsel as appropriate. 

We believe that principles of honesty, ethical practices, integrity and fairness are the cornerstones of a respectable and successful 
business. These principles are the heart of the Company’s philosophy and values. They are vital elements for establishing trust in 
our relationships with shareholders and stakeholders. They cannot be compromised. It is therefore important for our organisations, 
at every level, to understand and see value in upholding such principles, which must be applied holistically in all aspects of the 
Company’s and organizational objectives as an economic. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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The information set out below is disclosed in compliance with Bursa Securities Main Market Listing Requirements 

•	  SHARE BUY BACK 

	 There was no share buybacks exercise carried out by the Company during the financial year ended 31 May 2014. 

• 	OPTIONS OR CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES 

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year other than following:-
a)	 Bonus issue of 37,048,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each were issued on 21 November 2013 on the basis of two (2) 

bonus shares for every five (5) existing ordinary shares held. The bonus issue was capitalized entirely from the share 
premium account of the Company.

b)	 The issuance of Warrants 2013/2023 on 20 December 2013 at an issue price of RM0.10 per warrant in conjunction with 
the rights issue of warrants to shareholders on the basis of one (1) warrant for every two (2) ordinary shares held in the 
Company. The warrants entitle the holders to subscribe for new ordinary shares in the Company on the basis of one (1) 
ordinary share of RM0.50 each for every warrant held at an exercise price of RM0.60 per share within 10 years from the 
date of issue of the warrants. The exercise price of the warrants is subject to adjustment from time to time in accordance 
with the conditions stipulated in the Deed Poll created on 18 November 2013.

	 As at the end of the financial year, the Company has the following outstanding warrants:

Warrants 
Exercise price per 

ordinary share Expiry date 
Number of warrants 

outstanding at 31.5.2014 

Warrants 2013/2023 RM0.60 19.12.2023 64,834,000

• 	UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS

	 The Company did not raise proceeds from any other corporate exercise during the financial year except the issuance of Warrant 
2013/2013. The gross proceeds arose from the issuance of the Warrants amounted RM6,483,400 was used for working capital 
including but not limited to purchase of raw material, expenses for advertising and promotion activities etc. The proceeds was 
fully utilized before the end of financial year from the date of receipt of proceeds. 

•	 GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (GDR) PROGRAMME 

	 The Company did not sponsor any depository receipt programme during the financial year. 

• 	SANCTIONS AND/OR PENALTIES 

	 There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, Directors or management by the 
relevant authorities during the financial year, which have material impact on the operations or financial position of the Group. 

• 	NON-AUDIT FEE 

	 The amount of non-audit fees paid by the Group to the external auditors during the financial year ended 31 May 2014 amounted 
to RM20,000.

• 	VARIATION IN RESULTS 

	 There were no material variances between the audited results for the financial year ended 31 May 2014 and the unaudited 
results previously announced. The Company did not announce any profit estimates, forecasts and projections for the financial 
year. 

OTHER DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
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OTHER DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS (CONT’D)

• 	PROFIT GUARANTEE 

	 The Company did not give any profit guarantee during the financial year. 

• 	MATERIAL CONTRACTS INVOLVING DIRECTORS’/MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

	 On 27 September 2013, Keat Radio Co. Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the entire equity interest 
in Pensia Plastic Industries Sdn. Bhd.(“PPI”) for a total purchase consideration of RM2,000,000. PPI is a company in which 
certain Directors namely, Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak, Chew Chuon Jin and Chew Chuon Ghee are 
deemed to have a substantial financial interest.

	 Other than the above transaction, the Company did not enter into any material contract involving Directors’/major shareholders’ 
interests during the financial year.

• 	RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (“RRPT”) OF A REVENUE OR TRADING NATURE 

	 Details of the RRPT entered into during the financial year in accordance with the shareholders’ mandate obtained are as follows: 

Related Party Nature of 
Transaction

Interested Directors, major shareholders and 
connected persons

Value of RRPT
( in RM)

Pensia Plastic Industries 
Sdn. Bhd.

Purchase of 
goods

Y.Bhg. Dato’s Seri Chew WengKhak @ Chew WengKiak 2,850,670
Chew ChuonJin
Chew Chuon Ghee

Pensia Plastic Industries 
Sdn. Bhd

Sub contract and 
Service charges 
income

Y.Bhg. Dato’s Seri Chew WengKhak @ Chew WengKiak 212,495
Chew ChuonJin
Chew Chuon Ghee

Pensia Plastic Industries 
Sdn. Bhd

Rental charged for
Sub-letting for
Factory premises

Y.Bhg. Dato’s Seri Chew WengKhak @ Chew WengKiak 72,000
Chew ChuonJin
Chew Chuon Ghee

As of 27 September 2013, Pensia Plastic Industries Sdn. Bhd. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Keat Radio Co Sdn. Bhd.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
for the year ended 31 May 2014

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company for the year ended 31 May 2014.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed 
in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year. 

Results 

Group Company
RM RM

Profit for the year attributable to :

Owners of the Company 2,870,424 1,696,183
Non-controlling interests (163,370) –

2,707,054 1,696,183

Reserves and provisions

There were no material transfer to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year except as disclosed in the 
financial statements.

Dividends 

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company paid a final dividend of 1.75 sen per share less 25% tax, totalling 
approximately RM1,701,888 in respect of the financial year ended 31 May 2013 on 31 December 2013.

A first and final single-tier dividend of 2.00 sen per share amounting to RM2,593,360 in respect of the financial year 
ended 31 May 2014 will be proposed for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The 
financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the 
shareholders, will be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year 
ending 31 May 2015.

Directors of the Company 

Directors who served since the date of the last report are :

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak
Chew Chuon Jin
Chew Chuon Ghee
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai
Loh Eng Wee
Khairilanuar Bin Tun Abdul Rahman 
Dato’ Lela Pahlawan Dato’ Wira Ku Nahar Bin Ku Ibrahim
Tahir Jalaluddin Bin Hussain
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
for the year ended 31 May 2014

Directors’ interests in shares

The interests and deemed interests in the ordinary shares and warrants of the Company and of its related corporations 
(other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) of those who were Directors at financial year end (including the interests of the 
spouses and/or children of the Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company) as recorded in the Register 
of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows :

Number of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each
At 

1.6.2013
Bonus 
isssue Bought (Sold)

At 
31.5.2014

Interest in the Company :

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ 
	 Chew Weng Kiak - own 14,517,188 5,844,000 92,926 (114) 20,454,000
Chew Chuon Jin - own 7,080,100 2,840,400 20,900 – 9,941,400
Chew Chuon Ghee - own 2,700,200 1,144,000 159,800 – 4,004,000
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @	

Tan Khoon Hai - own 3,729,918 1,866,767 937,000 – 6,533,685
Khairilanuar Bin Tun Abdul 
	 Rahman - own – 2 – – 2

Deemed interest in the Company :

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ 
	 Chew Weng Kiak 

- own 15,022,794 6,093,664 361,366 – 21,477,824
- others* 11,736,300 4,824,400 324,700 – 16,885,400

Chew Chuon Jin 
- own 15,022,794 6,093,664 361,366 – 21,477,824
- others* 12,000 4,800 – – 16,800

Chew Chuon Ghee
- own 15,022,794 6,093,664 361,366 – 21,477,824

Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @ 
	 Tan Khoon Hai 

- own 4,000 1,600 – – 5,600
- others* 967,200 427,200 595,600 (202,000) 1,788,000

Interest in a subsidiary :

Pensonic Parts & Services Sdn. Bhd.

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ 
	 Chew Weng Kiak - own 1 – – – 1
Chew Chuon Jin - own 50,001 – – – 50,001
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Directors’ interests in shares (Cont’d)

Number of warrants 2013/2023
over ordinary shares of RM0.50 each

At 
1.6.2013

Allotted (Sold)
At 

31.5.2014

Interest in the Company :

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ 
	 Chew Weng Kiak - own – 10,227,000 – 10,227,000
Chew Chuon Jin - own – 5,485,700 – 5,485,700
Chew Chuon Ghee - own – 2,002,000 – 2,002,000
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai 
	 @ Tan Khoon Hai - own – 4,752,685 – 4,752,685

Deemed interest in the Company :

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ 
	 Chew Weng Kiak 

- own – 10,663,912 – 10,663,912
- others* – 8,957,700 – 8,957,700

Chew Chuon Jin
- own – 10,663,912 – 10,663,912
- others* – 10,000 – 10,000

Chew Chuon Ghee
- own – 10,663,912 – 10,663,912

Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @ 
Tan Khoon Hai 
- others* – 9,870 – 9,870

*	Shares and warrants held via the spouse and/or children and are treated as the interest of the Director in accordance 
with Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965. 

By virtue of their interest in the shares of the Company, Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak, Chew 
Chuon Jin and Chew Chuon Ghee are also deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company’s subsidiaries to the 
extent the Company has an interest. 
 
None of the other Directors holding office at 31 May 2014 had any interest in the ordinary shares and warrants of the 
Company and of its related corporations during the financial year. 

Warrants 

As at the end of the financial year, the Company has the following outstanding warrants :

Warrants 
Exercise price per 

ordinary share Expiry date 
Number of warrants 

outstanding at 31.5.2014

Warrants 2013/2023 RM0.60 19 December 2023 64,834,000

Warrants 2013/2023 were issued on 20 December 2013 at an issue price of RM0.10 per warrant in conjunction with 
the rights issue of warrants to shareholders on the basis of one (1) warrant for every two (2) ordinary shares held in the 
Company. The warrants entitle the holders to subscribe for new ordinary shares in the Company on the basis of one (1) 
ordinary share of RM0.50 each for every warrant held at an exercise price of RM0.60 per share within 10 years from the 
date of issue of the warrants. The exercise price of the warrants is subject to adjustment from time to time in accordance 
with the conditions stipulated in the Deed Poll created on 18 November 2013. 
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Directors’ benefits 

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive any 
benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors 
as shown in the financial statements of the Company or of related corporations) by reason of a contract made by the 
Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company 
in which the Director has a substantial financial interest other than those transactions entered in the ordinary course 
of business between the Company and certain related corporations with companies in which certain Directors have a 
substantial financial interest as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors of the 
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body 
corporate except where the benefit is acquired through the Company’s warrants as disclosed in the financial statements.

Issue of shares and debentures 

During the year, the issued and paid-up capital of the Company was increased from RM46,310,000 comprising of 
92,620,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each to RM64,834,000 comprising of 129,668,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each 
by way of a bonus issue of 37,048,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each on the basis of two (2) bonus shares for every 
five (5) existing ordinary shares held. The bonus issue was capitalised entirely from the share premium account of the 
Company.

There were no other changes in the share capital of the Company and no debentures were issued during the financial year.

Options granted over unissued shares 

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year other than 
the issuance of warrants to the shareholders.

Other statutory information

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to 
ascertain that:

i)	 all known bad debts have been written off and adequate provision made for doubtful debts, and

ii)	 any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business have been written down to 
an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

i)	 that would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the Group 
and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or

ii)	 that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company misleading, or

iii)	 which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and 
of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or

iv)	 not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, that would render any amount stated in the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
for the year ended 31 May 2014
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Other statutory information (Cont’d)

At the date of this report, there does not exist: 

i)	 any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year and which 
secures the liabilities of any other person, or

ii)	 any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, 
will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they 
fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 
31 May 2014 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unsual nature nor 
has any such item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial year and the date of this 
report.

Significant events during the year

Details of the significant events are as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

Auditors

The auditors, Messrs KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

................................................................
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @
Chew Weng Kiak 

................................................................
Chew Chuon Ghee

Penang,

Date : 26 September 2014

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
for the year ended 31 May 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
as at 31 May 2014

Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 81,105,685 65,474,934
Investment properties 4 497,588 505,851
Investments in associates 6 248,395 247,148
Intangible assets 7 1,034,071 1,024,632
Deferred tax assets 8 58,858 183,184

Total non-current assets 82,944,597 67,435,749

Inventories 9 81,072,651 75,059,829
Trade and other receivables 10 68,309,697 71,113,925
Current tax assets 2,140,582 1,812,371
Cash and cash equivalents 11 20,263,278 24,595,577

Total current assets 171,786,208 172,581,702

Total assets 254,730,805 240,017,451

Equity

Share capital 12 64,834,000 46,310,000
Reserves 13 30,738,258 41,623,028

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company 95,572,258 87,933,028

Non-controlling interests (299,841) (136,471)

Total equity 95,272,417 87,796,557

Liabilities

Loans and borrowings 14 8,089,584 13,114,425
Deferred tax liabilities 8 44,000 6,254

Total non-current liabilities 8,133,584 13,120,679

Loans and borrowings 14 89,788,078 83,564,312
Trade and other payables 15 61,536,180 55,535,903
Current tax payables 546 –

Total current liabilities 151,324,804 139,100,215

Total liabilities 159,458,388 152,220,894

Total equity and liabilities 254,730,805 240,017,451

The notes on pages 49 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
for the year ended 31 May 2014

Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Restated

Revenue 16 373,724,824 351,428,747
Cost of sales (303,010,365) (286,665,926)

Gross profit 70,714,459 64,762,821

Administrative and general expenses (26,755,494) (24,639,828)
Selling and distribution expenses (40,625,690) (35,324,151)
Other operating income 3,465,642 3,694,274
Other operating expenses (430,680) (158,641)

Results from operating activities 6,368,237 8,334,475

Finance costs 17 (4,523,229) (4,411,569)

Operating profit 1,845,008 3,922,906

Share of profit of equity-accounted associates, net of tax 1,247 20,224

Profit before tax 18 1,846,255 3,943,130

Income tax credit/(expense) 20 860,799 (380,928)

Profit for the year 2,707,054 3,562,202

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation differences of foreign operations (12,706) 30,442

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,694,348 3,592,644

Profit for the year attributable to :

Owners of the Company 2,870,424 3,626,913
Non-controlling interests (163,370) (64,711)

Profit for the year 2,707,054 3,562,202

Total comprehensive income attributable to :

Owners of the Company 2,857,718 3,657,355
Non-controlling interests (163,370) (64,711)

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,694,348 3,592,644

Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen) 21 2.21 2.80

The notes on pages 49 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 31 May 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONT’D)
for the year ended 31 May 2014
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Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations 1,846,255 3,943,130

Adjustments for :

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3 4,817,049 4,599,973
Depreciation of investment properties 4 8,263 8,264
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 18 – (56,763)
Excess of fair value over purchase consideration of a subsidiary 18 (35,925) –
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale 18 – (1,637,827)
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment 18 (31,016) (22,999)
Interest expense 17 4,523,229 4,411,569
Interest income 18 (171,998) (37,048)
Plant and equipment written off 18 452,529 93,714
Share of profit of equity-accounted associates, net of  tax (1,247) (20,224)

Operating profit before changes in working capital 11,407,139 11,281,789

Changes in working capital :
Inventories (2,646,532) 13,742,078
Trade and other receivables 6,508,589 (1,005,386)
Trade and other payables (8,342,010) 5,738,373

Cash generated from operations 6,927,186 29,756,854

Income tax refunded/(paid) 695,206 (673,540)

Net cash from operating activities 7,622,392 29,083,314

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
for the year ended 31 May 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)
for the year ended 31 May 2014

Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment 96,193 23,000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A (9,578,888) (11,680,280)
Proceeds from disposal of assets classified as held for sale – 2,290,978
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of a subsidiary 30 (2,476,279) –
Interest received 171,998 37,048
Proceeds from issuance of shares to non-controlling interests – 119,960

Net cash used in investing activities (11,786,976) (9,209,294)

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of term loans 3,345,710 6,521,967
Repayment of term loans (3,340,364) (3,341,846)
Proceeds from issuance of warrants 6,483,400 –
Repayment of finance lease liabilities (271,371) (207,740)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company (1,701,888) (1,215,632)
Repayment of other borrowings, net (2,125,583) (10,386,837)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits 909,903 59,194
Interest paid 17 (4,701,342) (4,442,597)

Net cash used in financing activities (1,401,535) (13,013,491)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,566,119) 6,860,529

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 June 12,047,294 5,284,163

Effects of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents (23,060) (97,398)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 May B 6,458,115 12,047,294
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NOTES 
 
A.	 Purchase of property, plant and equipment

	 During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of RM18,782,053 (2013 : 
RM13,143,199) of which RM428,250 (2013 : RM178,050) was acquired by means of finance lease and RM10,277,363 
(2013 : RM1,502,448) remained unpaid at year end. Included in the additions to property, plant and equipment is 
interest expense capitalised of RM178,113 (2013 : RM31,028).

B.	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the following consolidated 
statement of financial position amounts :

Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Short term deposits with licensed banks (excluding pledged deposits) 11 1,472,325 321,308
Cash and bank balances 11 16,789,021 21,362,434
Bank overdrafts 14 (11,803,231) (9,636,448)

6,458,115 12,047,294

The notes on pages 49 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)
for the year ended 31 May 2014
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Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 33,189,747 16,196,521
Investments in subsidiaries 5 31,372,509 31,372,509

Total non-current asset 64,562,256 47,569,030

Trade and other receivables 10 40,489,963 41,048,145
Current tax assets – 127,884
Cash and cash equivalents 11 2,928,812 83,990

Total current assets 43,418,775 41,260,019

Total assets 107,981,031 88,829,049

Equity

Share capital 12 64,834,000 46,310,000
Reserves 13 15,921,250 27,967,555

Total equity 80,755,250 74,277,555

Liabilities

Loans and borrowings 14 4,607,676 8,511,966

Total non-current liabilities 4,607,676 8,511,966

Loans and borrowings 14 10,040,707 4,420,338
Trade and other payables 15 12,577,398 1,619,190

Total current liabilities 22,618,105 6,039,528

Total liabilities 27,225,781 14,551,494

Total equity and liabilities 107,981,031 88,829,049

The notes on pages 49 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
as at 31 May 2014
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Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Continuing operations

Revenue 16 3,500,000 6,350,000

Administrative and general expenses (1,332,396) (520,169)

Other operating income 160,817 42,686

Operating profit 2,328,421 5,872,517

Finance cost 17 (630,317) (424,027)

Profit before tax 18 1,698,104 5,448,490

Income tax expense 20 (1,921) (1,527,225)

Profit for the year representing total comprehensive income 
	 for the year attributable to owners of the Company 1,696,183 3,921,265

The notes on pages 49 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
for the year ended 31 May 2014
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Non-distributable Distributable

Note
Share

capital
Share 

premium
Warrants

reserve
Retained 
earnings

Total 
equity

RM RM RM RM RM

At 1 June 2012 46,310,000 21,360,893 – 3,901,029 71,571,922

Profit for the year representing 
	 total comprehensive income 
	 for the year – – – 3,921,265 3,921,265

Dividend to owners of the Company 22 – – – (1,215,632) (1,215,632)

At 31 May 2013/1 June 2013 46,310,000 21,360,893 – 6,606,662 74,277,555

Profit for the year representing total 
comprehensive income for the 
year – – – 1,696,183 1,696,183

Contributions by and distributions to 
owners of the Company
-  Dividend to owners of the 

Company 22 – – – (1,701,888) (1,701,888)

-  Issuance of warrants – – 6,483,400 – 6,483,400

-  Issuance of bonus shares 18,524,000 (18,524,000) – – –

Total transactions with owners of 
the Company 18,524,000 (18,524,000) 6,483,400 (1,701,888) 4,781,512

At 31 May 2014 64,834,000 2,836,893 6,483,400 6,600,957 80,755,250

Note 12 Note 13 Note 13 Note 13

The notes on pages 49 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 31 May 2014



47

Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations 1,698,104 5,448,490

Adjustments for :
Amortisation of short term leasehold land 3 134,779 134,779
Interest expense 17 630,317 424,027
Interest income 18 (10,762) (3,349)
Dividend income 18 (3,500,000) (6,350,000)

Operating loss before changes in working capital (1,047,562) (346,053)

Changes in working capital :
Trade and other receivables (704,318) 2,566,038
Trade and other payables 2,183,293 (149,952)

Cash generated from operations 431,413 2,070,033

Income tax refunded 125,963 –
Dividends received 4,762,500 –

Net cash from operating activities 5,319,876 2,070,033

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment A (8,174,977) (8,714,504)
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary – 2
Interest received 10,762 3,349

Net cash used in investing activities (8,164,215) (8,711,153)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid to owners of the Company (1,701,888) (1,215,632)
Interest paid 17 (808,430) (455,055)
Drawdown of term loans 3,345,710 6,521,966
Repayment of term loans (1,460,000) (720,000)
Proceeds from issuance of warrants 6,483,400 –

Net cash from financing activities 5,858,792 4,131,279

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,014,453 (2,509,841)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 June (2,486,348) 23,493

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 May B 528,105 (2,486,348)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
for the year ended 31 May 2014
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NOTES

A.	 Purchase of property, plant and equipment

	 During the year, the Company acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of RM16,949,892 (2013 
: RM9,999,373) of which RM10,277,363 (2013 : RM1,502,448) remained unpaid at year end. Included in the additions 
to property, plant and equipment is interest expense capitalised of RM178,113 (2013 : RM31,028).

B. 	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following statement of financial 
position amounts :

Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Short term deposits with licensed banks 11 20,000 –
Cash and bank balances 11 2,908,812 83,990
Bank overdraft 14 (2,400,707) (2,570,338)

528,105 (2,486,348)

The notes on pages 49 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)
for the year ended 31 May 2014
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Pensonic Holdings Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and listed on the 
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The addresses of the principal place of business and registered office 
of the Company are as follows :

Principal place of business

Plot 98, Perusahaan Maju 8
Bukit Tengah Industrial Park
13600 Prai
Penang

Registered office

87 Muntri Street
10200 Penang

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 May 2014 comprise the Company 
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group” and individually referred to as “Group entities”) and the Group’s 
interest in associates.
 
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries are stated in 
Note 5 to the financial statements. 

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 September 2014.

1.	 Basis of preparation

(a)	 Statement of compliance
	
	 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian 

Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of 
the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

	 The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations of the MFRS framework that have been 
issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by the Group and the 
Company :

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
•	 Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements: Investment Entities

•	 Amendments to MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Investment Entities

•	 Amendments to MFRS 127, Separate Financial Statements (2011): Investment Entities

•	 Amendments to MFRS 132, Financial Instruments: Presentation – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities

•	 Amendments to MFRS 136, Impairment of Assets – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial 
Assets

•	 Amendments to MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements – Novation of Derivatives 
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting*

•	 IC Interpretation 21, Levies*

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1.	 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(a)	 Statement of compliance (Cont’d)

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
•	 Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (Annual 

Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle)

•	 Amendments to MFRS 2, Share-based Payment (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)*

•	 Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 
Cycle)

•	 Amendments to MFRS 8, Operating Segments (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

•	 Amendments to MFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (Annual Improvements 2010- 2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 
Cycle)

•	 Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

•	 Amendments to MFRS 119, Employee Benefits – Defined Benefit Plans : Employee Contributions*

•	 Amendments to MFRS 124, Related Party Disclosures (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

•	 Amendments to MFRS 138, Intangible Assets (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

•	 Amendments to MFRS 140, Investment Property (Annual Improvements 2011 – 2013 Cycle)

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
•	 MFRS 14, Regulatory Deferred Accounts*
•	 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 

138)*
•	 Accounting for acquisitions of Joint Operations (Amendments to MFRS 11)*
•	 Agriculture : Bearer Plants (Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141)*

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
•	 MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers  

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for a date yet to be confirmed
•	 MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2009)

•	 MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2010)

•	 MFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 7 and MFRS 139 

•	 Amendments to MFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Mandatory Effective Date of MFRS 9 and 
Transition Disclosures

	 The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and interpretations:

•	 from the annual period beginning on 1 June 2014 for those standards, amendments or interpretations that 
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, except for those marked “*” which are 
not applicable to the Group and the Company.

•	 from the annual period beginning on 1 June 2015 for those standards, amendments or interpretations that 
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, except for those marked “*” which are not 
applicable to the Group and the Company.

•	 from the annual period beginning on 1 June 2016 for those standards, amendments or interpretations that 
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, except for those marked “*” which are 
not applicable to the Group and the Company.

	 The initial application of the above standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any 
material financial impacts to the financial statements of the Group and the Company except as mentioned below :

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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1.	 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(a)	 Statement of compliance (Cont’d)

	 MFRS 9, Financial Instruments

	 MFRS 9 replaces the guidance in MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement on the 
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, and on hedge accounting.

	 The Group and the Company are currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the adoption of 
MFRS 9.

	 MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

	 MFRS 15 replaces MFRS 118, Revenue and introduces a new revenue recognition model for contracts with 
customers and new disclosure requirements. The adoption of MFRS 15 will result in a change in accounting 
policy. The Group is currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the adoption of MFRS 15.

(b)	 Basis of measurement

	 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the financial 
statements.

(c)	 Functional and presentation currency

	 These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s functional currency. 
All information is presented in RM, unless otherwise stated.

(d) 	Use of estimates and judgements

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

	 There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

2.	 Significant accounting policies

	 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial 
statements and have been applied consistently by Group entities, unless otherwise stated.

(a)	 Basis of consolidation

(i)	 Subsidiaries

	 Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Company. The financial statements 
of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences 
until the date that control ceases.  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a)	 Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

(i)	 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

	 The Group adopted MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements in the current financial year. This resulted 
in changes to the following policies:

•	 Control exists when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with 
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In the previous 
financial years, control exists when the Group has the ability to exercise its power to govern the financial 
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

•	 Potential voting rights are considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. In 
the previous financial years, potential voting rights are considered when assessing control when such 
rights are presently exercisable.

•	 The Group considers it has de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority 
of voting rights, it has the current ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect 
the investee’s return. In the previous financial years, the Group did not consider de facto power in its 
assessment of control.

	 The change in accounting policy has been made retrospectively and in accordance with the transitional 
provision of MFRS 10.  The adoption of MFRS 10 has no significant impact to the financial statements of the 
Group. 

	 Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any 
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of investments 
includes transaction costs. 

(ii)	 Business combinations

	 Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the acquisition date, which is 
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

	 For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date as:
•	 the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
•	 the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
•	 if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the 

acquiree; less
•	 the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

	 When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

	 For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the 
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the 
acquisition date.

	 Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group 
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

(iii)	Acquisitions of non-controlling interests

	 The Group treats all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control as 
equity transactions between the Group and its non-controlling interest holders. Any difference between the 
Group’s share of net assets before and after the change, and any consideration received or paid, is adjusted 
to or against Group reserves. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a)	 Basis of consolidation (Cont’d) 

(iv)	 Loss of control

	 Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, 
any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the former subsidiary from the 
consolidated statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised 
in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary, then such interest is measured at 
fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or 
as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained. 

(v)	 Associates

	 Associates are entities, including unincorporated entities, in which the Group has significant influence, but 
not control, over the financial and operating policies.

	 Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method 
less any impairment losses. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.  The consolidated financial 
statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates, 
after adjustments if any, to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant 
influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.

	 When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest 
including any long-term investments is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued 
except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

	 When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, any retained interest in the former 
associate at the date when significant influence is lost is measured at fair value and this amount is regarded 
as the initial carrying amount of a financial asset. The difference between the fair value of any retained 
interest plus proceeds from the interest disposed of and the carrying amount of the investment at the date 
when equity method is discontinued is recognised in the profit or loss.

	 When the Group’s interest in an associate decreases but does not result in a loss of significant influence, any 
retained interest is not re-measured.  Any gain or loss arising from the decrease in interest is recognised in 
profit or loss. Any gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are also reclassified 
proportionately to profit or loss if that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified to profit or loss on the 
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

	 Investments in associates are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less 
any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of the 
investment includes transaction costs.  

(vi) 	Non-controlling interests

	 Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable 
directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement of 
financial position and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable to the 
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit or loss and the 
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

	 Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests 
even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a)	 Basis of consolidation (Cont’d) 

(vii)	Transactions eliminated on consolidation	

	 Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group 
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

	 Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted associates are eliminated against the 
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the 
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

(b)	 Foreign currency 

(i)	 Foreign currency transactions

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entities 
at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

	 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.  

	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end of the 
reporting date, except for those that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at 
the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

	 Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

(ii)	 Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia

	 The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies other than RM, including goodwill 
and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RM at exchange rates at the end of the 
reporting period, except for goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from business combinations before 
1 June 2011 (the date when the Group first adopted MFRS) which are treated as assets and liabilities of the 
Company. The income and expenses of foreign operations, are translated to RM at exchange rates at the 
dates of the transactions. 

	 Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign 
currency translation reserve (“FCTR”) in equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, 
then the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests. 
When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the 
cumulative amount in the FCTR related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal.

	 When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the 
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group 
disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while 
remaining influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit 
or loss.

	 In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to 
a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses 
arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign operation and 
are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the FCTR in equity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

(c)	 Financial instruments

(i)	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, the Group or the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

	 A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the 
financial instrument.

	 An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if, 
and only if, it is not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the host 
contract is not categorised at fair value through profit or loss. The host contract, in the event an embedded 
derivative is recognised separately, is accounted for in accordance with policy applicable to the nature of the 
host contract.

(ii)	 Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement

	 The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows:

	 Financial assets

	 Loans and receivables

	 Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are not quoted in an active market, trade 
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. 

	 Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.

	 All financial assets are subject to review for impairment (see Note 2(h)(i)).

	 Financial liabilities

	 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(iii)	Financial guarantee contracts

	 A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse 
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with 
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

	 Fair value arising from financial guarantee contracts are classified as deferred income and are amortised 
to profit or loss using a straight-line method over the contractual period or, when there is no specified 
contractual period, recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the guarantee.  When settlement of a 
financial guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate of the obligation is made.  If the carrying value 
of the financial guarantee contract is lower than the obligation, the carrying value is adjusted to the obligation 
amount and accounted for as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

(c)	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(iv)	 Derecognition

	 A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred to another party without retaining control or 
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.  On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between 
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any 
new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in equity is recognised in 
profit or loss.

	 A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration 
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(d)	 Property, plant and equipment

(i)	 Recognition and measurement

	 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.

	 Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling 
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The cost of self-constructed assets 
also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in 
accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. 

	 Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that 
equipment.

	 When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

	
	 The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the 

proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised net 
within “other operating income” or “other operating expenses” respectively in profit or loss.

(ii)	 Subsequent costs

	 The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will 
flow to the Group or the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced 
component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii)	Depreciation	

	 Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual 
assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, 
then that component is depreciated separately.

	 Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part 
of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term 
and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the 
lease term. Property, plant and equipment under construction are not depreciated until the assets are ready 
for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

(d)	 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

(iii)	Depreciation (Cont’d)

	 The depreciation rates used for the current and comparative periods are as follows :

%

Buildings 2
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 5 - 33
Plant and machinery 10 - 12
Renovation and electrical installation 10 -12
Signboard and showcase 10
Motor vehicles 10 - 20
Computer 10 - 50

	 Leasehold land is depreciated over the lease period ranging from 48 to 84 years.

	 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, and 
adjusted as appropriate.

(e)	 Leased assets

(i)	 Finance lease

	 Leases in terms of which the Group and the Company assume substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount 
equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

	 Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the 
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term 
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent lease 
payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease 
when the lease adjustment is confirmed.

	 Leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease is classified as property, plant and equipment, or an 
investment property if held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both. 

(ii)	 Operating lease

	 Leases, where the Group or the Company does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as operating leases and, the leased assets are not recognised on the statement of 
financial position.  Property interest held under an operating lease, which is held to earn rental income or for 
capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment property.

	 Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the lease.  Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease 
expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the reporting period in 
which they are incurred.

	 Leasehold land which in substance is an operating lease is classified as prepaid lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

(f)	 Investment property

(i)	  Investment property carried at cost 

	 Investment properties are properties which are owned to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for 
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services 
or for administrative purposes.

	 Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses, consistent with the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment as stated in accounting policy 
Note 2(d).

	 Freehold land is not depreciated. Buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful 
life of the assets using an annual rate of 2%. 

	 An investment property is derecognised on its disposal, or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no 
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

(ii)	 Reclassification to/from investment property

	 Transfers between investment property, plant and equipment and inventories do not change the carrying 
amount and the cost of the property transferred.

(iii)	Determination of fair value

	 The Directors estimate the fair values of the Group’s investment properties without involvement of 
independent valuers. The fair values are based on market values, being the estimated amount for which a 
property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an 
arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably.

(g)	 Intangible assets

Goodwill
	

	 Goodwill arises on business combinations is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. In 
respect of equity-accounted associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment and an impairment loss on such an investment is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that 
forms part of the carrying amount of the equity-accounted associates.

Trademarks

	 Trademarks are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation

	 Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but are tested for impairment annually 
and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired. 

Research and development

	 Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge 
and understanding, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 

(g)	 Intangible assets (Cont’d) 

	 Research and development (Cont’d) 

	 Expenditure on development activities, whereby the application of research findings are applied to a plan or design 
for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised only if development 
costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic 
benefits are probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use 
or sell the asset. 

	 The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and overheads costs that are directly 
attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use.  For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in 
accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred.

	 Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.

(h)	 Impairment 

(i)	 Financial assets 
	

	 All financial assets (except for investments in subsidiaries and associates) are assessed at each reporting 
date whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events having an 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. Losses expected as a result of future events, no 
matter how likely, are not recognised.   

	 An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as 
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through 
the use of an allowance account.

	 If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively 
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss 
is reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would 
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of 
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(ii)	 Other assets

	 The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. 

	 If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and intangible 
assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is 
estimated each period at the same time.

	 For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or cash-generating units.  Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purpose of goodwill 
impairment testing, cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the 
level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for 
internal reporting purposes. The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment 
testing, is allocated to group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the 
combination.
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2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 

(h)	 Impairment (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Other assets (Cont’d)

	 The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

	 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit exceeds 
its estimated recoverable amount.

	 Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating 
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit 
(group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the cash-
generating unit (groups of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.

	 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses 
recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any indications that the loss 
has decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.  
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(i)	 Inventories

	 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

	 The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average cost principle and includes expenditure incurred in 
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their 
existing location and condition. In the case of work-in-progress and manufactured inventories, cost includes an 
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(j)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and highly liquid investments 
which have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with original maturities of three months or less, and are 
used by the Group and the Company in the management of their short term commitments.  For the purpose 
of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged 
deposits.

(k)	 Provisions

	 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of 
the discount is recognised as finance cost. 
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2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 

(l)	 Revenue and other income

(i)	 Goods sold

	 Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates.  
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales agreement, 
that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery of 
the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, 
and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be 
measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, 
then the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised. 

(ii)	 Dividend income

	 Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or the Company’s right to receive 
payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

(iii)	Rental income

	 Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the 
term of the lease. Rental income from subleased property is recognised as other income.

(iv)	 Interest income

	 Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method in profit or loss except for 
interest income arising from temporary investment of borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of 
obtaining a qualifying asset which is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing 
costs.

(v)	 Government grants

	 Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable 
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the 
grant; they are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of 
the asset.

	 Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other income on 
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised. 

(m)	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. 

	 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, 
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are 
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

	 The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for 
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the 
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when 
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted 
or completed.

	 Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.



62 Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 

(n)	 Income tax 

	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or 
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income. 

	 Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect 
of previous financial years.

	 Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not 
recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.  Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and 
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets 
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

	 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realised.

	 A tax incentive that is not a tax base of an asset is recognised as a reduction of tax expense in profit or loss as and 
when it is granted and claimed. Any unutilised portion of the tax incentive is recognised as a deferred tax asset to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the unutilised tax incentive 
can be utilised.

	  
	 Unutilised reinvestment allowance, being a tax incentive that is not a tax base of an asset, is recognised as a 

deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against the 
unutilised tax incentive can be utilised.

(o)	 Employee benefits

(i)	 Short-term employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and sick 
leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

	 A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit-sharing 
plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii)	 State plans

	 The Group’s contribution to statutory pension funds is charged to profit or loss in the year to which they 
relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in 
future payments is available.
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2.	 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 

(p)	 Earnings per share

	 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”).

	 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.

 
	 Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares outstanding adjusted for own shares held for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares, which comprise warrants granted to shareholders.

(q)	 Operating segments

	 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s 
other components. All operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating 
decision maker, which in this case is the Executive Chairman of the Group, to make decisions about resources 
to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is 
available.

(r)	 Equity instruments

	 Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.

(i)	 Issue expenses

	 Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are recognised as a deduction from 
equity.

(ii)	 Ordinary shares

	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

(s)	 Contingent liabilities

	 Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated 
reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent 
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as 
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(t)	 Fair value measurement

	 From 1 June 2013, the Group adopted MFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement which prescribed that fair value of an 
asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease transactions, is determined as the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 
market. 

	 For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 In accordance with the transitional provision of MFRS 13, the Group applied the new fair value measurement 
guidance prospectively, and has not provided any comparative fair value information for new disclosures. The 
adoption of MFRS 13 has not significantly affected the measurements of the Group’s assets or liabilities other 
than the additional disclosures.
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3.	 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 

Short term 
leasehold land

Construction 
in progress Total

RM RM RM

Company

Cost

At 1 June 2012 6,300,899 – 6,300,899

Additions – 10,030,401 10,030,401

At 31 May 2013/1 June 2013 6,300,899 10,030,401 16,331,300

Additions – 17,128,005 17,128,005

At 31 May 2014 6,300,899 27,158,406 33,459,305

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 June 2012 – – –

Amortisation for the year 134,779 – 134,779

At 31 May 2013/1 June 2013 134,779 – 134,779

Amortisation for the year 134,779 – 134,779

At 31 May 2014 269,558 – 269,558

Carrying amounts

At 31 May 2013/1 June 2013 6,166,120 10,030,401 16,196,521

At 31 May 2014 6,031,341 27,158,406 33,189,747

3.1	 Assets under finance lease - Group

	 Included in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment are the following assets acquired under finance 
lease :

2014 2013
RM RM

Motor vehicles 610,671 883,787
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 8,708 10,679

619,379 894,466
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3.	 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 

3.2	 Security

	 Group

	 Included in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment are the following assets charged as securities 
for borrowings granted to the Group :

2014 2013
RM RM

Leasehold land 8,946,025 9,148,819
Buildings 12,380,962 12,764,805
Plant and machinery 6,456,547 7,336,767
Construction in progress 27,158,406 10,030,401

54,941,940 39,280,792

	 Company

	 The short term leasehold land and construction in progress of the Company have been charged as securities for 
the term loan granted to the Company (Note 14).	

3.3	 Leasehold land - Group

	 Included in the carrying amount of leasehold land are :

2014 2013

RM RM

Leasehold land with unexpired lease period of more than 50 years 7,119,550 7,254,567
Leasehold land with unexpired lease period of less than 50 years 7,831,103 8,006,106

14,950,653 15,260,673

3.4	 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

	 Included in construction in progress of the Group and of the Company is interest expense capitalised amounting 
to RM178,113 (2013 : RM31,028).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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4.	 Investment properties - Group

Buildings 
RM

Cost

At 1 June 2012/31 May 2013/1 June 2013/31 May 2014 630,000

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 June 2012 115,885

Depreciation 8,264

At 31 May 2013/1 June 2013 124,149

Depreciation 8,263

At 31 May 2014 132,412

Carrying amounts

At 31 May 2013/1 June 2013 505,851

At 31 May 2014 497,588

Estimated fair value

At  31 May 2013/1 June 2013 876,000

At 31 May 2014 900,000

4.1   Security	

	 Investment properties amounting to RM371,053 (2013 : RM377,237) are charged as security for borrowings granted 
to the Group.

4.2   Fair value information	

	 The fair value was based on Directors’ estimation using the latest available market information and recent experience 
and knowledge in the location and category of property being valued. The fair value of the investment properties as at 
31 May 2014 is classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

	 Estimation uncertainty and key assumptions:

	 The Directors estimate the fair values of the Group’s investment properties based on comparison of the Group’s 
investment properties with similar properties that were listed for sales within the same locality or other comparable 
localities;

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

5.	 Investments in subsidiaries - Company

2014 2013
RM RM

Unquoted shares, at cost 32,392,509 32,392,509
Accumulated impairment (1,020,000) (1,020,000)

31,372,509 31,372,509

	 Details of the subsidiaries are as follows :
	

Name of subsidiaries
Country of 

incorporation

Effective ownership
interest and voting 

interest Principal activities
2014 2013

% %

Keat Radio Co. Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Manufacture, assembly and sale of 
electrical and electronic appliances

Pensia Electronic Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Manufacture, assembly and sale of 
electrical and electronic appliances

Pensia Industries Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Manufacture, assembly and sale of 
electrical and electronic appliances

Pensonic Sales & Service Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Distribution of electrical and 
electronic appliances

Cornell Sales & Service Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Distribution of electrical and 
electronic appliances

Amtek Marketing Services Pte. Ltd. * Republic of 
Singapore

100 100 Distribution of electrical and 
electronic appliances

Pensonic Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Provision of management services

Microtag Engineering Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia 51 51 Dormant

Subsidiaries of Keat Radio 
	 Co. Sdn. Bhd.

Pensonic Industries Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Distribution of electrical and 
electronic appliances

Pensonic (H.K.) Corporation Limited * Hong Kong 100 100 Trading of electrical and electronic 
appliances

Pensonic Parts & Service Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 60 60 Trading and service of parts for 
electrical and electronic appliances

Pensia Plastic Industries Sdn. Bhd. #* Malaysia 100 – Manufacture and sales of plastic 
injection and moulding
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5.	 Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Cont’d)

	 Details of the subsidiaries are as follows : (Cont’d)

Name of subsidiaries
Country of 

incorporation

Effective ownership
interest and voting 

interest Principal activities
2014 2013

% %

Subsidiary of Pensonic (H.K.) 
Corporation Limited

Pensonic Trading (Shenzhen) 
	 Co. Ltd. ##*

People’s 
Republic of 

China

– 100 Dormant

Subsidiary of Pensonic Sales & 
Service Sdn. Bhd.

Kollektion Distribution Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Distribution of home appliances

Subsidiary of Kollektion 
Distribution Sdn. Bhd.

Kollektion Haus (Austin) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 60 60 Distribution home appliances

*	 Not audited by KPMG
#	 Became a subsidiary of the Company on 27 September 2013 (Note 30)
## 	 Registration of the company was revoked by the Registrar in the People’s Republic of China on 5 October 2012 

and pending liquidation.

5.1 	Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries

	 The Group does not have any subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests.

6.	 Investments in associates - Group

2014 2013
RM RM

Unquoted shares, at cost 204,610 204,610

Share of post acquisition reserves 43,785 42,538

248,395 247,148

Name of associates
Country of 

incorporation

Effective ownership
 interest and voting 

interest Principal activities
2014 2013

% %

Pensonic (B) Sdn. Bhd. * (“PSB”) Brunei 40 40 Trading of electrical and electronic 
appliances

Microtag System Sdn. Bhd. ** 
(“MSSB”)

Malaysia 10 10 Dormant

*	 Interest held through Pensonic Corporation Sdn. Bhd.
**	 Interest held through Microtag Engineering Sdn. Bhd.	
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7.	 Intangible assets - Group

Goodwill Trademark Total
RM RM RM

Cost

At 1 June 2012 156,033 870,000 1,026,033

Exchange difference (1,401) – (1,401)

At 31 May 2013/1 June 2013 154,632 870,000 1,024,632

Exchange difference 9,439 – 9,439

At 31 May 2014 164,071 870,000 1,034,071

	 The trademark relates to the “Cornell” brand name that was acquired in a business combination by way of assignment 
of full and absolute rights from the registered proprietor. As those rights were assigned without any specified time 
frame and management believes that there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the brand is expected to 
generate cash inflows for the Group, the trademark was assessed as having an indefinite useful life subject to use in 
good faith.

8.	 Deferred tax - Group

	 Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following :

Assets Liabilities Net
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
RM RM RM RM RM RM

Tax loss carry-forwards 438,548 518,750 – – 438,548 518,750
Capital allowance 
	 carry-forwards 277,617 127,529 – – 277,617 127,529
Property, plant and equipment 

- capital allowances – – (394,500) (384,750) (394,500) (384,750)
Other temporary differences 58,858 37,746 (365,665) (122,345) (306,807) (84,599)

Tax assets/ (liabilities) 775,023 684,025 (760,165) (507,095) 14,858 176,930
Set-off of tax (716,165) (500,841) 716,165 500,841 – –

58,858 183,184 (44,000) (6,254) 14,858 176,930

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilised.
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8.	 Deferred tax - Group (Cont’d)

	 Movements in temporary differences during the year are as follows:

At 1 June 
2012

Charged 
to profit 

or loss
(Note 20)

Exchange 
difference

At
31 May 
2013/1 

June 2013

Charged 
to profit 

or loss
(Note 20)

Exchange 
difference

At 31 May 
2014

RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

Tax loss carry-forwards 992,000 (473,250) – 518,750 (80,202) – 438,548
Capital allowance 
	 carry-forwards 45,347 82,182 – 127,529 150,088 – 277,617
Property, plant and 

equipment -capital  
allowances (963,527) 578,777 – (384,750) (9,750) – (394,500)

Other temporary 
differences 466,845 (551,284) (160) (84,599) (222,549) 341 (306,807)

540,665 (363,575) (160) 176,930 (162,413) 341 14,858

	 Unrecognised deferred tax assets - Group

	 No deferred tax assets have been recognised for the following items (stated at gross):

2014 2013
RM RM

Tax loss carry-forwards 13,602,000 11,607,000
Unutilised reinvestment allowance 607,000 607,000

14,209,000 12,214,000

	 The tax loss carry-forwards, capital allowance carry-forwards and unutilised reinvestment allowance do not expire under 
current tax legislation. No deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of these items as these temporary 
differences are expected to substantially reverse during the tax holiday period of the subsidiaries concerned. (Note 20)

9.	 Inventories - Group

2014 2013
RM RM

Raw materials 11,686,617 4,758,640
Manufactured inventories 69,386,034 70,301,189

81,072,651 75,059,829

Recognised in cost of sales :
Write-down to net realisable value 2,099,833 127,689
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10.	 Trade and other receivables

Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Group

Trade

Trade receivables 60,948,909 58,672,104
Amount due from :
-	 Associate 10.1 1,468,650 1,454,370
-	 Companies in which certain 

	 Directors have a substantial financial interest 10.1 2,708,543 8,205,618

65,126,102 68,332,092

Non-trade

Other receivables 1,817,746 1,445,070
Deposits 489,468 534,970
Prepayments 876,381 801,793

3,183,595 2,781,833

68,309,697 71,113,925

Company

Non-trade

Amount due from subsidiaries 10.1 36,571,201 35,840,384
Other receivables 418,012 444,511
Deposits 750 750
Dividend receivable from subsidiaries 3,500,000 4,762,500

40,489,963 41,048,145

10.1	 Amounts due from an associate, companies in which certain Directors have a substantial financial 
interest and subsidiaries 

	 The trade amounts due from associate and companies in which certain Directors have a substantial financial 
interest are subject to negotiated terms. 

	 The non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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11. 	Cash and cash equivalents

2014 2013
Group RM RM

Short term deposits with licensed banks 3,474,257 3,233,143
Cash and bank balances 16,789,021 21,362,434

20,263,278 24,595,577

Company

Short term deposits with licensed banks 20,000 –
Cash and bank balances 2,908,812 83,990

2,928,812 83,990

11.1	 Short term deposits with licensed banks

	 Short term deposits amounting to RM2,001,932 (2013 : RM2,911,835) of the Group are held in lien for borrowings 
granted to the Group (Note 14). 

12.	 Share capital - Group/Company

2014 2013
Amount

RM
Number of 

shares
Amount

RM
Number of 

shares

Authorised :

Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each 100,000,000 200,000,000 100,000,000 200,000,000

Issued and fully paid :

Balance at 1 June 46,310,000 92,620,000 46,310,000 92,620,000
Bonus issue 18,524,000 37,048,000 – –

Balance at 31 May 64,834,000 129,668,000 46,310,000 92,620,000



75

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

13.	 Reserves

Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Group

Non-distributable :
Share premium 13.1 2,836,893 21,360,893
Translation reserve 13.2 380,713 393,419
Warrants reserve 13.3 6,483,400 –
Capital reserve 13.4 4,487,540 4,487,540

14,188,546 26,241,852

Distributable :
Retained earnings 16,549,712 15,381,176

30,738,258 41,623,028

Company

Non-distributable :
Share premium 13.1 2,836,893 21,360,893
Warrants reserve 13.3 6,483,400 –

Distributable :
Retained earnings 13.5 6,600,957 6,606,662

15,921,250 27,967,555

	 The movements in the reserves are disclosed in the statements of changes in equity.

13.1	 Share premium

	 Share premium comprises the premium paid on subscription of shares in the Company over and above the par 
value of the shares. During the financial year, the Company issued 37,048,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 
each via a bonus issue exercise capitalised entirely from the share premium account.

13.2	 Translation reserve

	 The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of financial 
statements of foreign operations.

13.3	 Warrants reserve 

	 The warrants reserve represents the consideration of the Warrants 2013/2023 at the date of issue. When the 
warrants are exercised or expire, the warrants reserve remains in equity, although it may be transferred to 
another reserve account within equity. 

	 As at the end of the financial year, the Company has the following outstanding warrants:

Warrants 
Exercise price per 

ordinary share Expiry date 
Number of warrants 

outstanding at 31.5.2014

Warrants 2013/2023 RM0.60 19.12.2023 64,834,000
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13.	 Reserves (Cont’d)

13.3	 Warrants reserve (Cont’d)

	 Warrants 2013/2023 were issued on 20 December 2013 at an issue price of RM0.10 per warrant in conjunction 
with the rights issue of warrants to shareholders on the basis of one (1) warrant for every two (2) ordinary shares 
held in the Company. The warrants entitle the holders to subscribe for new ordinary shares in the Company 
on the basis of one (1) ordinary share of RM0.50 each for every warrant held at an exercise price of RM0.60 
per share within 10 years from the date of issue of the warrants. The exercise price of the warrants is subject 
to adjustment from time to time in accordance with the conditions stipulated in the Deed Poll created on 18 
November 2013. 

13.4	 Capital reserve

	 The capital reserve of the Group represents the statutory reserve of foreign subsidiaries as required by foreign 
legislations.

13.5	 Retained earnings

	 The entire retained earnings of the Company is eligible to be paid out as dividends under the single-tier Company 
income tax system in accordance with The Finance Act, 2007.

14.	 Loans and borrowings 

2014 2013
RM RM

Group

Current 

Unsecured

Bank overdrafts 7,149,277 3,909,648
Bankers’ acceptances 61,753,270 61,027,978
Term loans 2,049,407 761,517

70,951,954 65,699,143

Secured

Bank overdrafts 4,653,954 5,726,800
Bankers’ acceptances 5,997,652 8,978,918
Trust receipts 1,125,891 –
Term loans 6,788,707 2,956,795
Finance lease liabilities 269,920 202,656

18,836,124 17,865,169

89,788,078 83,564,312
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14.	 Loans and borrowings (Cont’d)

2014 2013
RM RM

Group

Non-current

Unsecured

Term loans – 2,045,115

Secured 

Term loans 7,590,154 10,659,495
Finance lease liabilities 499,430 409,815

8,089,584 11,069,310

8,089,584 13,114,425

Company

Current 

Unsecured

Term loans 2,000,000 500,000

Secured

Bank overdraft 2,400,707 2,570,338
Term loans 5,640,000 1,350,000

8,040,707 3,920,338

10,040,707 4,420,338

Non-current

Unsecured

Term loans – 2,000,000

Secured 

Term loans 4,607,676 6,511,966

4,607,676 8,511,966

14.1	 Securities – Group/Company

	 The secured borrowings are secured against certain leasehold land, buildings, investment properties and short 
term deposits.

	 Finance lease liabilities of the Group are secured as the rights to the assets under the finance lease that will 
revert to the lessor in the event of default.
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14.	 Loans and borrowings (Cont’d)

14.2 	Finance lease liabilities - Group

	 Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

   2014      2013   

Future 
minimum

lease 
payments Interest

Present 
value of 

minimum 
lease 

payments

Future 
minimum

lease 
payments Interest

Present 
value of 

minimum 
lease 

payments
RM RM RM RM RM RM

Group

Less than 1 year 305,832 35,912 269,920 229,628 26,972 202,656
Between 1 and 5 years 542,786 43,356 499,430 434,406 24,591 409,815

848,618 79,268 769,350 664,034 51,563 612,471

15.	 Trade and other payables

Note 2014 2013
RM RM

Group

Trade

Trade payables 34,488,520 36,797,931
Company in which certain Directors have a substantial financial interest 15.2 – 1,511,295

34,488,520 38,309,226

Non-trade

Other payables 15.1 17,382,266 8,292,319
Accrued expenses 9,665,394 8,934,358

27,047,660 17,226,677

61,536,180 55,535,903

Company

Non-trade

Other payables 15.1 10,277,363 1,502,448
Amount due to a subsidiary 15.2 2,167,293 –
Accrued expenses 132,742 116,742

12,577,398 1,619,190
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15.	 Trade and other payables (Cont’d)

15.1	 Other payables

	 Included in other payables of the Group and of the Company of RM10,277,363 (2013 : RM1,502,448) is amount 
due to a building contractor for construction work performed.

15.2	 Amount due to a subsidiary and company in which certain Directors have a substantial financial 
interest 

	 The trade amount due to a company in which certain Directors have a substantial financial interest was subjected 
to negotiated terms.

	 The non-trade amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.

16.	 Revenue 

Revenue of the Group represents the invoiced value of goods sold less discounts and returns.
	
Revenue of the Company represents gross dividend income from subsidiaries.

17.	 Finance costs

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RM RM RM RM

Interest expense on : 

Term loans 1,149,313 868,971 610,312 311,852
Bank overdrafts 819,619 667,826 198,118 143,203
Bankers’ acceptances 2,730,887 2,843,311 – –
Other borrowings 1,523 62,489 – –

4,701,342 4,442,597 808,430 455,055

Recognised in profit or loss 4,523,229 4,411,569 630,317 424,027
Capitalised under property, plant and 

equipment (Note 3.4) 178,113 31,028 178,113 31,028

4,701,342 4,442,597 808,430 455,055
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18.	 Profit before tax

	 Profit before tax is arrived at :

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RM RM RM RM

After charging :

Auditors’ remuneration :
- Audit fees

- KPMG Malaysia 
- current year 175,000 170,000 28,000 26,000
- prior year – 4,100 – 3,000

- Other auditors 39,635 29,886 – –
- Non audit fees

- KPMG Malaysia 7,000 8,000 7,000 8,000
- Local affiliate of KPMG Malaysia 39,528 37,960 2,500 2,500
- Others 13,000 12,000 13,000 12,000

Bad debts written off 2,224,048 439,897 – –
Directors’ remuneration

Directors of the Company :
Current Directors

- fees 100,000 70,000 100,000 70,000
- other emoluments 1,509,212 1,386,479 – –

Past Director
- fees – 10,000 – 10,000
- other emoluments – 29,790 – –

Depreciation on investment properties 
	 (Note 4) 8,263 8,264 – –
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

(Note 3) 4,817,049 4,599,973 134,779 134,779
Impairment loss of receivables 2,374,047 61,559 – –
Inventories written off – 637,667 – –
Inventories written down (Note 9) 2,099,833 127,689 – –
Loss on foreign exchange, net

- realised  752,959 185,762 – –
- unrealised  – 53,090 – –

Plant and equipment written off 452,529 93,714 – –
Rental expense

- equipment 268,043 183,607 – –
- premises 6,138,881 6,208,960 – –
- exhibition booths 223,211 106,754 – –

Research and development expense 779,314 921,581 – –
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18.	 Profit before tax (Cont’d)

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RM RM RM RM

and after crediting :

Dividends (gross) from subsidiaries – – 3,500,000 6,350,000
Gain on disposal of :

- plant and equipment 31,016 22,999 – –
- assets classified as held for sale – 1,637,827 – –
- a subsidiary – 56,763 – –

Interest income 171,998 37,048 10,762 3,349
Rental income

- investment properties 29,750 28,300 – –
- sublet of factory premises 201,839 312,300 – –

Gain on foreign exchange, net	
- unrealised  940,020 – – –

Bad debts recovered 4,537 32,674 – –
Excess of fair value over purchase 

consideration of a subsidiary (Note 30) 35,925 – – –

Government grants* 436,888 380,668 150,055 39,303

*	 The Group and the Company received matching government grants for research and development activities and 
training expenses incurred. There were no significant unfulfilled conditions and contingencies attached to the 
government grants that have been recognised in profit or loss. 

19.	 Employee information

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RM RM RM RM

Staff costs (including Executive Directors) 22,365,916 21,350,365 – –

	 Staff costs and Directors’ emoluments of the Group include contributions to the Employees’ Provident Fund of 
RM2,208,337 (2013 :  RM1,952,101).  

20.	 Income tax credit/expense

	 Recognised in profit or loss

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RM RM RM RM

Income tax (credit)/expense (860,799) 380,928 1,921 1,527,225
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20.	 Income tax credit/expense (Cont’d)

	 Major components of income tax expense include :

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RM RM RM RM

Current tax expense

Malaysian tax

- current year 74,135 39,977 – 1,550,477
- prior years (1,110,360) (18,411) 1,921 (23,252)

(1,036,225) 21,566 1,921 1,527,225

Foreign tax

- current year 18,702 – – –
- prior years (5,689) (4,213) – –

13,013 (4,213) – –

Total current tax (1,023,212) 17,353 1,921 1,527,225

Deferred tax expense

- origination and reversal of temporary 
differences (15,587) 977,238 – –

- prior years 178,000 (613,663) – –

Total deferred tax 162,413 363,575 – –

Total income tax (credit)/expense (860,799) 380,928 1,921 1,527,225
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20.	 Income tax credit/expense (Cont’d)

	 Reconciliation of income tax expense

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
RM RM RM RM

Profit for the year 2,707,054 3,562,202 1,696,183 3,921,265
Total income tax (credit)/expense (860,799) 380,928 1,921 1,527,225

Profit excluding tax 1,846,255 3,943,130 1,698,104 5,448,490

Tax calculated using Malaysian tax rate 
	 at 25% (2013 : 25%) 461,564 985,783 424,526 1,362,123
Effect of different tax rates in foreign 

jurisdictions * (30,251) 31,012 – –
Non deductible expenses 1,288,894 798,372 487,988 222,330
Non-taxable income (77,333) (493,819) (912,514) (33,976)
Tax incentives (2,002,727) (1,534,624) – –
Effect of deferred tax assets not recognised 467,582 1,245,403 – –
Other items (30,479) (14,912) – –
(Over)/Under provision in prior years (938,049) (636,287) 1,921 (23,252)

Total income tax (credit)/expense (860,799) 380,928 1,921 1,527,225

*	 The tax rates in the foreign jurisdictions in which certain foreign subsidiaries operate are different from that of the 
Malaysian tax rate.

	 Certain subsidiaries of the Company have been granted tax exemption status for a period of five (5) years commencing 
1 June 2012 under Section 127(3)(b) of the Income Tax Act, 1967 with an option to extend for a period of another five 
(5) years upon the expiry of the initial tax exemption period subject to the authority’s approval being obtained. Under 
the tax exemption status, these subsidiaries’ statutory income is exempted from income tax.

21.	 Earnings per ordinary share - Group

	 Basic earnings per ordinary share

	 The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the 
Company of RM2,870,424 (2013 : RM3,626,913) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
calculated as follows : 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2014 2013

Issued ordinary shares at 1 June 92,620,000 92,620,000

Effect of bonus issue 37,048,000 37,048,000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 May 129,668,000 129,668,000

	 During the financial year, the issued and paid up share capital of the Company was increased by RM18,524,000 
comprising 37,048,000 number of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each pursuant to the Company’s bonus issue.
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21.	 Earnings per ordinary share - Group (Cont’d)

	 Basic earnings per ordinary share (Cont’d)

	 In accordance with MFRS 133, Earnings Per Share, the calculations of the basic earnings per ordinary share for the 
current and prior period has been adjusted to reflect the change in the number of shares arisng from the bonus issue.

	 Diluted earnings per ordinary share

	 Diluted earnings per share is not applicable as the exercise price of the warrants is higher than the average market 
price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the period.

22.	 Dividends - Company

Amount
RM Date of payment

2014

Final dividend of 1.75 sen per share less 25% tax for financial year 2013 1,701,888 31 December 2013

2013

Final dividend of 1.75 sen per share less 25% tax for financial year 2012 1,215,632 31 December 2012

	 A first and final single-tier dividend of 2.00 sen per share amounting to RM2,593,360 in respect of the financial year 
ended 31 May 2014 will be proposed for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The 
financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by 
the shareholders, will be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial 
year ending 31 May 2015.

23.	 Related parties

23.1	 Identity of related parties

	 For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group or the Company 
if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant 
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or 
the Company and the party are subject to common control or significant influence. Related parties may be 
individuals or other entities. The Group has a related party relationship with the following :

i)	 Significant investors, subsidiaries and associates.

ii)	 Pensonic Technology Sdn. Bhd. in which Chew Chuon Jin has a substantial financial interest.

iii)	 Pensia Plastic Industries Sdn. Bhd.(“PPI”), a company in which certain Directors namely, Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri 
Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak, Chew Chuon Jin and Chew Chuon Ghee are deemed to have a 
substantial financial interest. PPI became a subsidiary of the Company on 27 September 2013 (Note 30).

iv)	 Key management personnel 

	 Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly. The key management 
personnel include all the Directors of the Group and certain members of senior management of the Group.
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23.	 Related parties (Cont’d)

23.2	 Related party transactions

23.2.1	 Transaction with subsidiaries:

2014 2013
RM RM

Company

- Dividend income 3,500,000 6,350,000

23.2.2 	 Transaction with an associate

2014 2013
RM RM

Group

- Sales 1,286,188 1,313,941

23.2.3	 Transactions with related parties 

2014 2013
RM RM

Group

- Purchases (2,850,670) (8,562,271)
- Acquisition of a subsidiary (2,000,000) –
- Rental charged for sub-letting of factory premises 72,000 216,000
- Subcon and service charge income 212,495 610,985

23.2.4	 There were no transactions with the key management personnel other than the rental expense charged 
by Directors to the Group amounting to RM119,000 (2013 : RM144,000) and the remuneration package 
paid to them in accordance with the terms and conditions of their appointment as disclosed in Note 18 
to the financial statements.

	
	 The non-trade balances of the Company with related parties outstanding at the end of the financial 

period are as disclosed in Note 10 and Note 15 respectively to the financial statements. During the year, 
the Group recognised an impairment of RM1.5 million (2013 : Nil) in respect of related party receivables.

	 All the amounts outstanding are unsecured and are expected to be settled in cash. 

24.	 Operating segments 
	
	 The Group has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group’s strategic business units. The 

strategic business units offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they require 
different marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the Group’s Executive Chairman (the chief 
operating decision maker) reviews internal management reports at least on a monthly basis.

	 The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:
	

Manufacturing - Manufacture, assembly and sales of electrical and electronic appliances

Trading - Sales and distribution of eletrical and eletronic appliances
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24.	 Operating segments (Cont’d)

	 Other non-reportable segments represents investment holding activities and provision of management services to the 
Group.

	 Performance is measured based on segment profit before tax as included in the internal management reports that 
are reviewed by the Group’s Executive Chairman (the chief operating decision maker). Segment profit is used to 
measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of 
segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. 

	
	 Segment assets

	 The total of segment asset is measured based on all assets (including goowill) of a segment, as included in the internal 
management reports that are reviewed by the Group’s Executive Chairman. Segment total asset is used to measure 
the return on assets of each segment.

	 Segment liabilities

	 Segment liabilities information is neither included in the internal management report nor provided regularly to the 
Group’s Executive Chairman. Hence, no disclosure is made on segment liability.

	 Segment capital expenditure

	 Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the financial year to acquire property, plant and equipment, 
investment properties and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Manufacturing Trading Others Eliminations Note Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2014

Segment profit (1,215) 8,336 (469) (4,807) 1,845

Included in the measure of segment 
profit are :

Revenue from external customers 11,786 361,939 – – 373,725
Inter-segment revenue 95,578 14,645 7,052 (117,275) –
Depreciation and amortisation (3,183) (1,460) (182) – (4,825)
Other items (1,986) (5,129) 36 – A (7,079)

Not included in the measure of segment 
profit but provided to Group Managing 
Director :

Interest income – 161 11 – 172
Finance costs (1,044) (2,849) (630) – (4,523)
Share of profit of equity-accounted 

associates – – 1 – 1

Segment assets 100,095 188,175 107,572 (141,111) 254,731

Included in the measure of segment 
assets are :

Additions to non-current assets other 
than financial instruments and 
deferred tax assets 2,852 985 17,128 – 20,965
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24.	 Operating segments (Cont’d)

Manufacturing Trading Others Eliminations Note Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2013

Segment profit 2,322 7,645 179 (6,223) 3,923

Included in the measure of segment 
profit are :
Revenue from external customers 10,061 341,368 – – 351,429
Inter-segment revenue 92,047 7,675 6,350 (106,072) –
Depreciation and amortisation (3,047) (1,380) (181) – (4,608)
Other items 1,543 (1,211) 57 – A 389

Not included in the measure of segment 
profit but provided to Group Managing 
Director :
Interest income 19 57 4 (43) 37
Finance costs (1,376) (2,612) (424) – (4,412)
Share of profit of equity-accounted 

associates – – 20 – 20

Segment assets 81,590 181,249 86,408 (109,230) 240,017

Included in the measure of segment 
assets are :

Additions to non-current assets other 
than financial instruments and 
deferred tax assets 2,241 903 10,030 – 13,174

A.	 Other items consist of the following as presented in the respective notes to the financial statements :

2014 2013
RM’000 RM’000

Plant and equipment written off 453 94
Bad debts written off 2,224 440
Inventories written down 2,100 128
Inventories written off – 638
Impairment loss of receivables 2,374 62
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment (31) (23)
Gain on disposal of assets classified as held for sale – (1,638)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary – (57)
Bad debts recovered (5) (33)
Excess of fair value over purchase consideration of a subsidiary (36) –

	 Geographical segment

	 In presenting geographical information, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers. 
Segment assets are also based on the geographical location of assets. The amounts of non-current assets do not 
include financial instruments (including investment in associates) and deferred tax assets.  
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24.	 Operating segments (Cont’d)
	
	 Geographical segment (Cont’d)

Segment revenue
2014 2013

RM’000 RM’000

Malaysia 268,172 259,048
Other Asian countries 80,723 70,444
Middle East 24,468 21,385
Others 362 552

373,725 351,429

Segment non-current assets
2014 2013

RM’000 RM’000

Malaysia 82,608 66,992
Other Asian countries 29 13

82,637 67,005

25.	 Contingent liabilities, unsecured 

Company

	 The Company has undertaken to provide continuing financial support to enable certain subsidiaries to meet their 
financial obligations as and when they fall due.

26.	 Financial instruments

26.1	 Categories of financial instruments

	 The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows :

(a)	 Loans and receivables (“L&R”); and
(b)	 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“FL”).

Carrying 
amount L&R FL

RM RM RM

2014

Financial assets

Group

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) 67,433,316 67,433,316 –
Cash and cash equivalents 20,263,278 20,263,278 –

87,696,594 87,696,594 –
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26.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

26.1	 Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d)

Carrying 
amount L&R FL

RM RM RM
2014

Financial assets

Company

Trade and other receivables 40,489,963 40,489,963 –
Cash and cash equivalents 2,928,812 2,928,812 –

43,418,775 43,418,775 –

Financial liabilities

Group

Loans and borrowings 97,877,662 – 97,877,662
Trade and other payables 61,536,180 – 61,536,180

159,413,842 – 159,413,842

Company

Loans and borrowings 14,648,383 – 14,648,383
Trade and other payables 12,577,398 – 12,577,398

27,225,781 – 27,225,781

2013

Financial assets

Group

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) 70,312,132 70,312,132 –
Cash and cash equivalents 24,595,577 24,595,577 –

94,907,709 94,907,709 –

Company

Trade and other receivables 41,048,145 41,048,145 –
Cash and cash equivalents 83,990 83,990 –

41,132,135 41,132,135 –
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26.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

26.1	 Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d)

Carrying 
amount L&R FL

RM RM RM

2013

Financial liabilities

Group

Loans and borrowings 96,678,737 – 96,678,737
Trade and other payables 55,535,903 – 55,535,903

152,214,640 – 152,214,640

Company

Loans and borrowings 12,932,304 – 12,932,304
Trade and other payables 1,619,190 – 1,619,190

14,551,494 – 14,551,494

26.2	 Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments :

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Net gains/(losses) arising on:
- Loans and receivables (4,422) (432) 11 3
- Finance liabilities measured at 

amortised cost (4,523) (4,412) (630) (424)

(8,945) (4,844) (619) (421)

26.3	 Financial risk management

	 The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

•	 Credit risk
•	 Liquidity risk
•	 Market risk

26.4	 Credit risk

	 Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from its receivables from 
customers. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from advances to subsidiaries and financial 
guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries.
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26.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

26.4	 Credit risk (Cont’d)

	 Receivables

	 Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

	 Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. 
Normally credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

	 Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

	 As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from receivables is represented 
by the carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.

	 Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are 
measured at their realisable values. A significant portion of these receivables are regular customers that have 
been transacting with the Group. The Group uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the receivables. 

	 The exposure of credit risk for receivables as at the end of the reporting period by geographic region was :

2014 2013
RM’000 RM’000

Group

Malaysia 59,691 51,383
Other Asian countries 5,667 17,843
Others 1,586 551

66,944 69,777

Company

Malaysia 36,493 35,788
Other Asian countries 497 497

36,990 36,285

	 Impairment losses

	 The Group maintains an ageing analysis in respect of trade receivables only. The ageing of trade receivables as 
at the end of the reporting period was :

Gross
Individual 

impairment
Collective 

impairment Net
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

2014

Not past due 50,366 – – 50,366
Past due less than 60 days 9,861 – – 9,861
Past due 61 - 120 days 1,564 – – 1,564
Past due 121 - 180 days 266 – – 266
Past due 181 - 365 days 588 – – 588
Past due > 1 year 3,036 (555) – 2,481

65,681 (555) – 65,126
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26.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

26.4	 Credit risk (Cont’d)

	 Receivables (Cont’d)

	 Impairment losses (Cont’d)

Gross
Individual 

impairment
Collective 

impairment Net
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

2013

Not past due 54,556 – – 54,556
Past due less than 60 days 8,909 – – 8,909
Past due 61 - 120 days 337 – – 337
Past due 121 - 180 days 551 – – 551
Past due 181 - 365 days 1,176 – – 1,176
Past due > 1 year 3,181 (378) – 2,803

68,710 (378) – 68,332

	 The movements in the allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables during the financial year were :

Group
2014 2013

RM’000 RM’000

At 1 June 378 3,277
Impairment loss recognised 2,039 62
Impairment loss written off (1,862) (2,961)

At 31 May 555 378

	 The allowance account in respect of receivables is used to record impairment losses. Unless the Group is 
satisfied that recovery of the amount is possible, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against the 
receivable directly.

	 Financial guarantees

	 Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

	 The Company provides unsecured financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain 
subsidiaries. The Company monitors on an ongoing basis the results of the subsidiaries and repayments made 
by the subsidiaries.

	 Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

	 The maximum exposure to credit risk amounts to RM99.36 million (2013 : RM101.23 million) representing the 
outstanding banking facilities of the subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period.

	 As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that any subsidiary would default on repayment.

	 The financial guarantees have not been recognised since the fair value on initial recognition was not material.
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26.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

26.4	 Credit risk (Cont’d)

	 Inter company balances

	 Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

	 The Company provides unsecured advances to subsidiaries. The Company monitors the results of the subsidiaries 
regularly.

	 Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

	 As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying 
amounts in the statement of financial position.

	 Impairment losses

	 As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that the advances to subsidiaries are not recoverable. 
The Company does not specifically monitor the ageing of the advances to the subsidiaries. However, these 
advances are not considered overdue and are repayable on demand.

	 Investments and other financial assets

	 Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

	 Investments are only allowed in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a strong credit rating.

	 Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

	 As at the end of the financial reporting period, the Group and the Company have placements of bank balances 
and short term deposits with banks. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying 
amounts in the statements of financial position. 

	 In view of the sound credit rating of the banks, the management does not expect any counterparty to fail to 
meet its obligations. 

26.5	 Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables, loans and borrowings.

	 The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the 
management to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall 
due.

	 It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at 
significant different amounts.
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26.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

26.5	 Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

	 Maturity analysis
	

	 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities as at the 
end of the reporting period based on undiscounted contractual payments:

Carrying 
amount

Contractual
interest 

rates
Contractual 

cash flows
Under
1 year

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

More 
than

 5 years
RM % RM RM RM RM RM

2014

Group

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities

Term loans 14,428,268 3.00 - 7.85 16,145,707 7,502,988 5,294,525 3,348,194 –
Interest free term 

loan 2,000,000 – 2,000,000 2,000,000 – – –
Bankers’ 

acceptances 67,750,922 1.67 - 5.20 67,750,922 67,750,922 – – –
Trust receipts 1,125,891 6.75 1,125,891 1,125,891 – – –
Bank overdrafts 11,803,231 1.75 - 8.10 11,803,231 11,803,231 – – –
Finance lease 

liabilities 769,350 2.46 - 7.60 848,618 305,832 217,503 325,283 –
Trade and other 

payables 61,536,180 – 61,536,180 61,536,180 – – –

159,413,842 161,210,549 152,025,044 5,512,028 3,673,477 –

Company

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities

Term loans 10,247,676 6.60 11,320,199 6,012,240 4,145,058 1,162,901 –
Interest free 
	 term loan 2,000,000 – 2,000,000 2,000,000 – – –
Bank overdraft 2,400,707 7.10 2,400,707 2,400,707 – – –
Trade and other 

payables 12,577,398 – 12,577,398 12,577,398 – – –

27,225,781 28,298,304 22,990,345 4,145,058 1,162,901 –
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26.5	 Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

	 Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

Carrying 
amount

Contractual
interest 

rates
Contractual 

cash flows
Under
1 year

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

More 
than

 5 years
RM % RM RM RM RM RM

2013

Group

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities

Term loans 13,922,922 3.00 - 7.85 15,638,527 4,067,021 6,304,488 5,267,018 –
Interest free 
	 term loan 2,500,000 – 2,500,000 500,000 2,000,000 – –
Bankers’ 

acceptances 70,006,896 1.58 - 5.50 70,006,896 70,006,896 – – –
Bank overdrafts 9,636,448 6.25 - 8.25 9,636,448 9,636,448 – – –
Finance lease 

liabilities 612,471 2.46 - 8.00 664,034 229,628 222,564 211,842 –
Trade and other 

payables 55,535,903 – 55,535,903 55,535,903 – – –

152,214,640 153,981,808 139,975,896 8,527,052 5,478,860 –

Company

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities

Term loans 7,861,966 6.60 8,568,234 1,825,260 4,789,174 1,953,800 –
Interest free term 

loan 2,500,000 – 2,500,000 500,000 2,000,000 – –
Bank overdraft 2,570,338 7.10 2,570,338 2,570,338 – – –
Trade and other 

payables 1,619,190 – 1,619,190 1,619,190 – – –

14,551,494 15,257,762 6,514,788 6,789,174 1,953,800 –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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26.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

26.6	 Market risk

	 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that will 
affect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.

26.6.1	 Currency risk

	 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated 
in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities. The currencies giving 
rise to this risk are primarily U.S. Dollar (“USD”) and Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”).

	 Exposure to foreign currency risk

	 The Group’s exposure to foreign currencies (a currency which is other than the currency of the Group 
entities) risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was:

USD HKD
RM’000 RM’000

Group

2014

Trade receivables 1,260 26
Cash and bank balances 8,457 271
Trade payables (5,729) (59)

3,988 238

2013

Trade receivables 9,592 211
Cash and bank balances 7,931 210
Trade payables (11,440) (20)

6,083 401

	 Currency risk sensitivity analysis

	 The Group and the Company are not significantly exposed to currency risk.  

26.6.2	 Interest rate risk

	 The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in their fair value due to changes in 
interest rates. The Group’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due to 
changes in interest rates. Short term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed to interest 
rate risk.

	 Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

	 Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risks that the value of a 
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest-earning 
financial assets are short term in nature and are mostly placed in short term deposits.

	

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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26.6	 Market risk (Cont’d)

26.6.2	 Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

	 Exposure to interest rate risk

	 The interest rate profile of the Group’s significant interest-earning and interest-bearing financial 
instruments, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was :

2014 2013
RM’000 RM’000

Group

Fixed rate instruments

Financial asset
- Short term deposits with licensed banks 3,474 3,233

Financial liabilities
- Finance lease liabilities 769 612
- Bankers’ acceptances 67,751 70,007

68,520 70,619

Floating rate instruments

Financial liabilities
- Term loans 14,428 13,923
- Bank overdrafts 11,803 9,636
- Trust receipts 1,126 –

27,357 23,559

Company

Fixed rate instruments

Financial asset
- Short term deposits with licensed banks 20 –

Floating rate instruments

Financial liabilities
- Term loan 10,248 7,862
- Bank overdraft 2,401 2,570

12,649 10,432

	 Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

(a)	 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

	 The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, and the Group does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair 
value hedged accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting 
period would not affect profit or loss.

(b)	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

	 The Group’s and the Company’s variable rate financial liabilities are not significantly exposed to 
interest rate risk.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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26.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

26.7	 Fair value information (Cont’d)

Fair value of financial instruments 
carried at fair value

Fair value 
of financial 

instruments 
not carried at 

fair value * Total fair Carrying 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Total value amount

RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

2013

Group

Financial liabilities
Term loans – variable rate – – – – (16,423,000) (16,423,000) (16,422,922)
Finance lease liabilities – – – – (633,733) (633,733) (612,471)

– – – – (17,056,733) (17,056,733) (17,035,393)

Company

Financial liabilities
Term loans – variable rate – – – – (10,362,000) (10,362,000) (10,361,966)

*	 Comparative figures have not been analysed by levels, by virtue of transitional provision given in Appendix 
C2 of MFRS 13.

Policy on transfer between levels

	 The fair value of an asset to be transferred between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change 
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

	 Level 1 fair value

	 Level 1 fair value is derived from quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial assets or 
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

	 Level 2 fair value

	 Level 2 fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the financial assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

	 Non-derivative financial liabilities

	 Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future 
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the end of the reporting period. For 
other borrowings, the market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar borrowing arrangements.

	 Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values

	 There has been no transfer between Level 1 and 2 fair values during the financial year. (2013: no transfer in 
either directions)

	 Level 3 fair value

	 Level 3 fair value is estimated using unobservable inputs for the financial assets and liabilities.

	 The fair value of term loans and finance lease liabilities are calculated using discounted cash flows.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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27.	 Capital management

	 The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. The Directors monitor and are determined to maintain an optimal debt-to-equity ratio 
that complies with debt covenants and regulatory requirements.

	 There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.

28.	 Operating leases - Group

	 Leases as lessee

	 Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows :

2014 2013
RM’000 RM’000

Less than one year 4,123 2,512
Between one and five years 6,587 126

10,710 2,638

	 The Group leases a warehouse under operating leases. The lease was for an initial period of 3 years with an option to 
renew the lease on an annual basis upon the expiry of the initial lease period.

	 Lease as lessor

	 The Group subleases out one of its properties to a third party. The future minimum lease receivables under the non-
cancellable lease are as follows : 

2014 2013
RM’000 RM’000

Less than one year 192 192
Between one and five years 112 304

304 496

29.	 Capital commitments

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Property, plant and equipment

Contracted but not provided for 14,904 16,938 14,904 16,938

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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30. 	Acquisition of subsidiary - Group

	 On 27 September 2013, Keat Radio Co. Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the entire 
equity interest in Pensia Plastic Industries Sdn. Bhd.(“PPI”) for a total purchase consideration of RM2,000,000. In 
the eight months to 31 May 2014, the subsidiary contributed a revenue of RM230,518 and loss of RM49,502. If 
the acquisition had ocurred on 1 June 2013, management estimates that consolidated revenue would have been 
RM373,724,824 and consolidated profit for the financial year would have been RM2,608,380. 

	 The following summarises the major classes of consideration transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

RM’000

Fair value of consideration transferred

Cash and cash equivalents 2,000

Note RM’000

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Plant and equipment 3 2,004
Inventories 3,366
Trade and other receivables 3,705
Trade and other payables (5,567)
Bank overdraft (476)
Loans and borrowings (996)

Total identifiable net assets 2,036

Negative goodwill consolidation 18 (36)

Purchase consideration paid, settled in cash 2,000

RM’000

Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of subsidiary
Purchase consideration settled in cash and cash equivalents (2,000)
Bank overdraft assumed (476)

(2,476)

Acquisition-related costs

	 The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of RM6,627 related to external legal fees. The legal fees has been 
included in other operating expenses in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income.

31. 	Significant events during the year

	 During the year, the Company undertook the following :

(a)	 bonus issue of 37,048,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each credited as fully paid-up on the basis of two (2) bonus 
shares for every five (5) existing ordinary shares of RM0.50 each held in the Company. The bonus issue was 
capitalised entirely from the share premium account; and

(b)	 renounceable rights issue of 64,834,000 warrants at an issue price of RM0.10 per warrant on the basis of one (1) 
warrant for every two (2) ordinary shares held after the bonus issue.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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32.	 Comparative figures - Group 

	 Certain comparative figues have been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation as follows :

2013 2013

As restated
As previously 

presented
RM RM

Group

Revenue 351,428,747 362,515,382
Cost of sales (286,665,926) (297,752,561)

	 The restatement does not have any impact on the earnings for ordinary shares of the Group.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

33.	 Supplementary financial information on the breakdown of realised and unrealised profits or losses

	 The breakdown of the retained earnings of the Group and of the Company as at 31 May, into realised and unrealised 
profits, pursuant to Paragraphs 2.06 and 2.23 of Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirements, are as follows:

2014 2013
Group Company Group Company

RM RM RM RM

Total retained earnings of the Company 
	 and its subsidiaries

- realised 18,175,229 6,600,957 17,489,985 6,606,662
- unrealised 954,878 – (8,832) –

19,130,107 6,600,957 17,481,153 6,606,662

Total share of retained earnings of associates

- realised 43,785 – 42,538 –

19,173,892 6,600,957 17,523,691 6,606,662

Less : Consolidation adjustments (2,624,180) – (2,142,515) –

Total retained earnings 16,549,712 6,600,957 15,381,176 6,606,662

	 The determination of realised and unrealised profits is based on the Guidance of Special Matter No. 1, Determination 
of Realised and Unrealised Profit or Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad Listing Requirements, issued by Malaysian Institute of Accountants on 20 December 2010.
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In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 37 to 102 are drawn up in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the 
Company as of 31 May 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

In the opinion of the Directors, the information set out in Note 33 on page 103 to the financial statements has been 
compiled in accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or 
Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, issued by the 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants, and presented based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors :

....................................................................			                         ....................................................................
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @			                         Chew Chuon Ghee
Chew Weng Kiak						    

Penang,

Date : 26 September 2014

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

I, Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak, the Director primarily responsible for the financial 
management of Pensonic Holdings Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on 
pages 37 to 103 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously 
believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed at Georgetown in the State of Penang on 26 September 2014.  

....................................................................
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ 
Chew Weng Kiak

Before me :

Chan Kam Chee 
(No. P120)
Commissioner for Oaths
Penang 

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965
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Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Pensonic Holdings Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial 
position as at 31 May 2014 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 37 to 102.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements so as to give a true and 
fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control 
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility	

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company 
as at 31 May 2014, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 
1965 in Malaysia.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:
 
a)	 In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and 

its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act.

b)	 We have considered the accounts and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of which we have not acted as 
auditors, which are indicated in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

c)	 We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s financial 
statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial 
statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those 
purposes.

d)	 The audit reports of the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse comment made 
under Section 174(3) of the Act.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
to the members of Pensonic Holdings Berhad
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Other Reporting Responsibilities

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The information 
set out in Note 33 on page 103 to the financial statements has been compiled by the Company as required by the Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements and is not required by the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards or 
International Financial Reporting Standards. We have extended our audit procedures to report on the process of compilation 
of such information. In our opinion, the information has been properly compiled, in all material respects, in accordance 
with the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context 
of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, issued by the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants and presented based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of 
this report.

KPMG 								        Thong Foo Vung
AF 0758								       2867/08/16 (J)
Chartered Accountants						      Chartered Accountant

Date : 26 September 2014

Petaling Jaya
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
to the members of Pensonic Holdings Berhad
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Registered
Owner

Location Description 
and Existing 
Use

Approximately 
Age of Build-

ings (Yrs)

Tenure Land/
Built-Up 

Area

NetBook 
Value At 

31.05.2014
RM

KRC Plot 5, Tingkat Perusahaan 
6, Phase 4,Prai Industrial 
Estate,13600 Prai, Penang.

Industrial 
land with 
warehouse and 
office

21 Leasehold
Expiring in
2052

1.8441 
acres/

40,000
sq.ft.

919,522

KRC Block H1-09, H1-10, H1-11, 
H2-09, H2-10, H2-11, CI-09, 
CI-10, C1-11, C2-09, C2-10,
C2-11, Taman Pelangi,
13600 Prai, Penang.

Residential 17 Leasehold 7,200
sq.ft.

322,036

KRC Shoplot B1.1.27 & B1.1.28 
Komtar, Penang.

Shoplot 31 Leasehold
Expiring in
2075

624sq.ft. 371,053

PENSONIC 
INDUSTRIES

Shoplot B1.1.29 Komtar, 
Penang.

Shoplot 31 Leasehold
Expiring in
2075

312sq.ft. 126,535 

PENSIA 
ELECTRONIC

Plot 98, MK.11,Bukit Tengah 
Industrial Park, SPT, Prai, 
Penang.

Industrial land 
with factory, 
warehouse and 
office

17 Leasehold
Expiring in
2054

3.05632 
acres/

112,050 
sq.ft.

4,854,260

PSS Lot 4, Towering Industrial 
Centre, 4½Miles Penampang, 
88300 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah.

Warehouse 
and office

22 Leasehold
Expiring in
2037

2,700
sq.ft.

217,143

PSS Lot 11-B, Jalan 223, Section 
51A, 46100 Petaling Jaya, 
Selangor.

Warehouse 
and office

22 Leasehold
Expiring in
2069

43,560
sq.ft.

8,818,200

PSS 31, Laluan Perusahaan 
Kledang 9, Kawasan 
Perindustrian Chandan Raya, 
31450 Menglembu, Perak.

Warehouse 
and office

16 Leasehold
Expiring in
2082

5,494
sq.ft.

325,059

PSS Lot 11-A, Jalan 223, Section 
51A, 46100 Petaling Jaya, 
Selangor.

Warehouse 
and office

10 Leasehold
Expiring in
2070

43,560 
sq.ft.

4,475,436

PENSIA 
INDUSTRIES

Plot 215, MK.13, Bukit 
Minyak Industrial Park, SPT, 
Prai, Penang.

Industrial land 
with factory 
and warehouse

11 Leasehold
Expiring in
2064

3acres/
75,260

sq.ft.

4,942,973

PHB Plot 98, Bukit Minyak 
Industrial Park, SPT Prai, 
Penang (Lot No. 4532 MK13 
Daerah Seberang Perai 
Tengah, Pulau Pinang.

Industrial land 
& construction 
in progress

2 Leasehold
Expiring in 
2059

2.42812
ha/24,283 

sqmeter

33,189,747

LIST OF PROPERTIES OWNED BY GROUP
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDINGS STATISTICS AS AT 7 OCTOBER 2014

Class of Securities : Ordinary Shares of RM0.50 each

Authorised Share Capital : RM100,000,000.00

Issued & Paid-up Capital : RM64,834,000.00

Voting Rights : Shareholders
Every member of the Company present in person or by proxy or represented by attorney 
shall on a show of hand have one vote and upon a poll every such member shall have one 
vote for every share held by him.

Number of shareholders : 2,736

Distribution Schedule of Ordinary Shares As At 7 October 2014

No. of Holders Size of Holdings Total Holdings % of Total Issued Capital

12 Less than 100 shares 288 #
72 100 to 1,000 shares 26,024 0.02

1,556 1,001 to 10,000 shares 8,286,064 6.39
973 10,001 to 100,000 shares 25,194,240 19.43
121 100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares 78,641,384 60.65

2 5% and above of issued shares 17,520,000 13.51

2,736 129,668,000 100.00

# Negligible

THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS ACCORDING TO THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS AS AT  
7 OCTOBER 2014

No. Names No. of Shares %
1 Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. 9,520,000 7.34
2 Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 8,000,000 6.17
3 Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account – Ambank (M) Berhad 
For Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. 

6,150,000 4.74

4 Chew Chuon Ghee 4,600,000 3.55
5 Nation Rex Sdn. Bhd. 4,263,680 3.29
6 Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. 4,200,000 3.24
7 Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 

Pledged Securities Account For Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai
3,532,480 2.72

8 Chew Chuon Fang 3,400,000 2.62
9 Chew Chuon Jin 2,971,400 2.29
10 Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 2,800,000 2.16
11 Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 2,800,000 2.16
12 Alliancegroup Nominess (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account For Chew Chuon Jin 
2,500,000 1.93

13 Chew Chuon Jin 2,470,000 1.90
14 Chew Chuon Ghee 2,310,000 1.78
15 Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account For Phnuah Farn Farn
2,145,800 1.65

16 Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 
Pledged Securities Account – Ambank (M) Berhad For 
Chew Chuon Jin

2,000,000 1.54
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS (CONT’D)

THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS ACCORDING TO THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS AS AT  
7 OCTOBER 2014 (CONT’D)

No. Names No. of Shares %
17 Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. 1,607,824 1.24
18 Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 1,500,000 1.16
19 Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 

Pledged Securities Account – Ambank (M) Berhad For
Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai 

1,363,940 1.05

20 Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 
Pledged Securities Account For Tan Yong Siang  

1,188,920 0.92

21 The Kulim-Baling Road Transport Company, Sdn. Bhd. 1,013,600 0.78
22 Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 

Pledged Securities Account For Phnuah Farn Farn 
886,840 0.68

23 Chew Chuon Fang 854,000 0.66
24 Tan Ah Nya @ Tan Bee Tiang 840,000 0.65
25 Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 

Pledged Securities Account For Chan Mei Cheng 
816,060 0.63

26 Lee Seng Long 684,580 0.53
27 Koon Woh 662,000 0.51
28 Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 

Pledged Securities Account For Tan Hui Lun
659,400 0.51

29 Lee Ann Nee 599,500 0.46
30 Inter-Pacific Equity Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account For Arsam Bin Damis 
595,000 0.46

Total 76,935,024 59.32

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 7 OCTOBER 2014

Direct Interest Indirect Interest
Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. (a)21,477,824 16.56 – –
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 15,100,000 11.65 (b)(c) 43,717,224 33.71
Chew Chuon Jin (a)9,941,400 7.67 (b)(d) 21,494,624 16.58
Chew Chuon Ghee 7,204,000 5.56 (b) 21,477,824 16.56

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 7 OCTOBER 2014

Direct Interest Indirect Interest
Name of Directors No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 15,100,000 11.65 (b)(c) 43,717,224 33.71
Chew Chuon Jin (a)9,941,400 7.67 (b)(d) 21,494,624 16.58
Chew Chuon Ghee 7,204,000 5.56 (b) 21,477,824 16.56
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai (a)6,033,685 4.65 (e)(f) 1,986,660 1.53
Loh Eng Wee – – – –
Khairilanuar Bin Tun Abdul Rahman 2 0.00 – –
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Lela Pahlawan Dato’ Wira Ku Nahar Bin Ku Ibrahim – – – –
Tahir Jalaluddin Bin Hussain – – – –
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS (CONT’D)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 7 OCTOBER 2014 (CONT’D)

Notes:

(a) Certain shares are held through nominee companies

(b) Deemed interested by virtue of their interest in Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Act.

(c) Deemed interested by virtue of their interest in Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn Bhd to Section 6A of the Act and 
Indirect interest held pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965

No. of shares %
Datin Seri Tan Ah Nya @ Tan Bee Tiang (Wife) 840,000 0.65
Chew Chuon Jin (Son) 9,941,400 7.67
Chew Chuon Ghee (Son) 7,204,000 5.56
Chew Chuon Fang (Son) 4,254,000 3.28

(d) Deemed interested by virtue of their interest in Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn Bhd to Section 6A of the Act and 
Indirect interest held pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965

No. of shares %
Tan Guat See (Wife) 16,800 0.01

(e) Deemed interested by virtue of their interest in Tan Khoon Hai Sdn Bhd to Section 6A of the Act 
No. of shares %

Tan Khoon Hai Sdn Bhd 5,600 0.00

(f) Indirect interest held pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965
No. of shares %

Puan Sri Datin Seri Chan Mei Cheng (Wife) 821,660 0.63
Tan Hui Lun (Daughter) 1,159,400 0.89
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PRINCIPAL WARRANTHOLDINGS STATISTICS AS AT 7 OCTOBER 2014

Class of Securities			   :	 64,834,000 warrants
Exercise price of warrants		  :	 RM0.60 for each warrant
Expiry date of warrants		  :	 29 November 2023
Voting Rights		 :	 One vote per warrant at any warrantholders’ meeting
Number of warrantholders		 :	 882 holders

Distribution Schedule Of Warrants As At 7 October 2014

No. of Holders Size of Warrantholdings Total Holdings % 

6 Less than 100 warrants 290 #
34 100 to 1,000 warrants 20,930 0.02

536 1,001 to 10,000 warrants 2,471,792 6.39
242 10,001 to 100,000 warrants 7,736,990 19.43

61 100,001 to less than 5% of issued warrants 33,044,998 60.65            
3 5% and above of issued warrants 21,559,000 13.51

882 64,834,000 100.00

# Negligible

THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT WARRANTHOLDERS ACCORDING TO THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS 
AS AT 7 OCTOBER 2014

No. Name of Warrantholders No. of Warrants %
1 Koon Woh 11,199,000 17.27
2 Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 5,600,000 8.64
3 Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. 4,760,000 7.34
4 Chew Chuon Jin 3,000,000 4.63
5 Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account For Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai
2,601,826 4.01

6 Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. 2,303,912 3.55
7 Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. 2,100,000 3.24
8 Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account – Ambank (M) Berhad For
Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. 

1,500,000 2.31

9 Chew Chuon Jin 1,485,700 2.29
10 Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 1,400,000 2.16
11 Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 1,400,000 2.16
12 Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak 1,400,000 2.16
13 Chew Chuon Ghee 1,155,000 1.78
14 Chew Chuon Fang 1,050,000 1.62
15 Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account – Ambank (M) Berhad For Chew Chuon Jin 
1,000,000 1.54

16 Nation Rex Sdn. Bhd. 1,000,000 1.54
17 Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai 841,800 1.30
18 Chew Chuon Ghee 700,000 1.08

ANALYSIS OF WARRANTHOLDINGS
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANTHOLDINGS (CONT’D)

THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT WARRANTHOLDERS ACCORDING TO THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS 
AS AT 7 OCTOBER 2014 (CONT’D)

No. Name of Warrantholders No. of Warrants %
19 Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account For Tan Yong Siang
694,400 1.07

20 Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Pledged Securities Account – Ambank (M) Berhad For 
Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai 

612,200 0.94

21 Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Pledged Securities Account For Hiew Chee Wan 

446,000 0.69

22 Chew Chuon Fang 427,000 0.66
23. Tan Ah Nya @ Tan Bee Tiang 420,000 0.65
24 Alliance group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account For Kong Kok Choy 
400,000 0.62

25 Chen Yoke Faa 350,000 0.54
26 CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account For Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai 
339,600 0.52

27 Low Chee Hian 334,500 0.52
28 Kong Kok Choy 300,000 0.46
29 Boon Kim Yu 263,800 0.41
30 Low Chee Meng 260,000 0.40

Total 49,344,738 76.10

SUBSTANTIAL WARRANTHOLDERS AS AT 7 OCTOBER 2014

Direct Interest Indirect Interest
Name of Warrantholders No. of Warrants % No. of Warrants %

Koon Wah 11,199,000 17.27 – –
Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn. Bhd. (a) 10,663,912 16.45 – –
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @  Chew Weng Kiak (a) 9,800,000 15.12 (b)(c) 20,048,612 30.92
Chew Chuon Jin (a)  5,485,700 8.46 (b)(d) 10,673,912 16.46
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @  Tan Khoon Hai (a) 4,752,685 7.33 (e)  9,870 0.02
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANTHOLDINGS (CONT’D)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ WARRANTHOLDINGS AS AT 7 OCTOBER 2014

Direct Interest Indirect Interest
Name of Directors No. of Warrants % No. of Warrants %

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @  Chew Weng Kiak (a) 9,800,000 15.12 (b)(c) 20,048,612 30.92
Chew Chuon Jin (a) 5,485,700 8.46 (b)(d) 10,673,912 16.46
Chew Chuon Ghee 2,002,000 3.09 (b) 10,663,912 16.45
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @  Tan Khoon Hai (a) 4,752,685 7.33 (e) 9,870 0.02
Loh Eng Wee – – – –
Khairilanuar Bin Tun Abdul Rahman – – – –
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Lela Pahlawan Dato’ Wira Ku Nahar Bin Ku Ibrahim – – – –
Tahir Jalaluddin Bin Hussain – – – –

Notes:

(a) Certain shares are held through nominee companies

(b) Deemed interested by virtue of their interest in Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Act.

(c) Deemed interested by virtue of their interest in Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn Bhd to Section 6A of the Act and 
Indirect interest held pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965

No. of Warrants %
Datin Seri Tan Ah Nya @ Tan Bee Tiang (Wife) 420,000 0.65
Chew Chuon Jin (Son) 5,485,700 8.46
Chew Chuon Ghee (Son) 2,002,000 3.09
Chew Chuon Fang (Son) 1,477,000 2.28

(d) Deemed interested by virtue of their interest in Chew Weng Khak Realty Sdn Bhd to Section 6A of the Act and 
Indirect interest held pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965

No. of Warrants %
Tan Guat See (Wife) 10,000 0.02

(e) Indirect interest held pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965
No. of Warrants %

Puan Sri Datin Seri Chan Mei Cheng (Wife)   2,800 0.00
Tan Hui Lun (Daughter)                                   7,070 0.01
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ANNOUNCEMENT OF RESULTS

29 October 2013 Preliminary announcement of unaudited consolidated results for the first quarter ended  
31 August 2013.

24 January 2014 Preliminary announcement of unaudited consolidated results for the second quarter ended  
30 November 2013.

29 April 2014 Preliminary announcement of unaudited consolidated results for the third quarter ended  
28 February 2014.

31 July 2014 Preliminary announcement of unaudited consolidated results for the fourth quarter ended  
31 May 2014.

30 September 2014 Preliminary announcement of annual audited account for the Financial year ended  
31 May 2014.

DIVIDENDS

31 December 2013 Payment of the first and final dividend of 1.75 sen per share less tax of 25% for the year ended 
31 May 2013.

4 November 2014 Notice of the entitlement and payment of the first and final single-tier dividend of 2.00 sen per 
ordinary share for the year ended 31 May 2014.

ANNUAL REPORT & GENERAL MEETINGS

4 November 2014 Notice of the 20th Annual General Meeting and posting of the 2014 Annual Report to 
shareholders.

26 November 2014 20th Annual General Meeting 

FINANCIAL CALENDAR



No. of Shares Held CDS Account No.

Telephone no. (During office hours): ______________

I/We __________________________________________________________ NRIC No. / Company No. _________________________

of _______________________________________________________________________________________ being a member / 

members of Pensonic Holdings Berhad hereby appoint the following person(s) :-

Name of Proxy & NRIC No. of shares to be presented by Proxy
1.
2.

or failing him, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 20th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held at Laurel Ballroom Level 1, Evergreen Laurel Hotel, 53, Persiaran Gurney, 
10250 Penang on Wednesday, 26th day of November, 2014 at 11.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof, to vote as 
indicated below :-

For Against
Ordinary Businesses
Approval of First and Final Dividend (Resolution 1)
Approval of payment of Directors’ Fees (Resolution 2)
Re-election of Chew Chuon Ghee (Resolution 3)
Re-election of Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Tan King Tai @ Tan Khoon Hai (Resolution 4)
Re-election of Y. Bhg. Dato’ Lela Pahlawan Dato’ Wira Ku Nahar Bin Ku Ibrahim (Resolution 5)
Re-election of Lee Hong Lim (Resolution 6)
Re-appointment of Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Chew Weng Khak @ Chew Weng Kiak (Resolution 7)
Appointment of Auditors (Resolution 8)
Special Business
Authority to Issue Shares (Resolution 9)

(Please indicate with a “X” in the spaces provided above on how you wish your vote to be cast. If you do not do so, the 
proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.)

Dated this ________ day of _________________ 2014			             _____________________________________
 Signature of Member(s) or/ Common Seal

Notes :

1) For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend at the Annual General Meeting, the Company 
shall be requesting a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 19 November 2014. Only a depositor whose name 
appears on the Record of Depositors as at 19 November 2014 shall be entitled to attend the said meeting or appoint 
proxies to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf. A proxy appointed to attend and vote at the meeting shall have the same 
rights as the member to speak at the meeting.

2) A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 
1965 shall not apply to the Company.

3) Where a member appoints two or more proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless the member specifies the 
proportions of his holding to be represented by each proxy.

4) The instrument appointing a proxy in the case of any individual shall be signed by the appointor or his attorney duly 
authorised in writing and in the case of a corporation under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney 
duly authorised.

5) Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for 
multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies 
which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

6) The Proxy Form must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 87, Muntri Street, 10200 Penang, 
Malaysia not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

PROXY FORM



fold this flap for sealing

fold here

PENSONIC HOLDINGS BERHAD
(COMPANY NO. 300426-P)

THE SECRETARY
87, MUNTRI STREET, 
10200 PENANG.




















